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HIGHLIGHTS

Though Fairwood delivered a solid performance in the
first three quarters of the year, the “fifth wave” of
COVID-19 brought unprecedented challenges to the
food and beverage sector in the last quarter. In addition,
subsidies from the government decreased from last

LK%IE’JEE/mT'JTEkD.Z% C EHEEA2608 7T (= year's HK$272.5 million (including employment support
T % B¥1536187T) ° scheme of HK$183.2 million) to HK$58.9 million this
year. As a result, Fairwood recorded a drop of profit by
72.2% to HK$42.6 million (2021: HK$153.6 million).
FEWMAABBEKIZSIETL( T - —F: B8 Revenue was HK$2,881.9 million (2021: HK$2,646.5
26.465187T) * 1 18.9% ° million), increased by 8.9%.
AEBGHEFEROPERL RZZT__F=H= The Group maintained a healthy financial position with

+—BEEENRTER
5571{87T °

fﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%f,\%%%’%

bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents of HK$557.1
million as at 31 March 2022.

AEER T _F=ZA=+—BYBRTERLE
BEERBT -

The Group had no bank borrowings and nil gearing
ratio as at 31 March 2022.

EREARBFAE3291BIN(ZF=—4:118.59%F

W) @A 72.2% o

Basic earnings per share were HK32.91 cents (2021:
HK118.59 cents), decreased by 72.2%.

EEDIRKE B FH40.08 - 2F4
FH65.08M MR B RLAE197% °

RIS

Final dividend of HK40.0 cents per share was proposed,
representing a total dividend per share for the year of
HK65.0 cents and a payout ratio of approximately
197%.
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Interim results announcement
30 November 2021

i ERR% BOR S B ER
—E-—F+-_A=+—H

Paid date of the interim dividend
31 December 2021

2EEENT
—2--_FH=+H

Annual results announcement
30 June 2022

EERERNDBFERL

Closure of Register of Members

- BREFAE - Annual general meeting
TR _FAAZHEZZ-_FAANH 2 September 2022 to 8 September 2022
(BREEMX) (both days inclusive)

- BEKRHRE — Proposed final dividend
—E-_—HFAA+RAEZE_—_FhhA=+H 16 September 2022 to 20 September 2022
(BEEEMX) (both days inclusive)

R EFRE Annual general meeting

—EZZFAANA 8 September 2022

FEANE BURAT B 2R
ZE - F+ANBRZA

Payable date of the final dividend
On or before 6 October 2022

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
increased by 8.9% year-on-year, to HK$2,881.9 million (2021:
HK$2,646.5 million). Profit attributable to equity shareholders
dropped by 72.2% to HK$42.6 million (2021: HK$ 153.6 million).
Gross profit margin decreased to 7.7% (2021: 12.4%). Basic
earnings per share amounted to HK32.91 cents (2021: HK118.59
cents).

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK40.0 cents
(2021: HK60.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March
2022. Together with the interim dividend of HK25.0 cents (2021:
HK30.0 cents) per share paid during the year, the total dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounts to HK65.0 cents (2021:
HK90.0 cents) per share, representing a total distribution of
approximately 197% of the Group’s profit for the year. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on or before Thursday, 6
October 2022 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company at the close of business on
Tuesday, 20 September 2022.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

With COVID-19 largely under control in Hong Kong throughout
the first nine months of the financial year, the Group delivered a
solid performance from April to December 2021. Despite
mandatory social distancing measures that included limits on diner
numbers and restrictions on restaurant opening hours, Fairwood
adapted well to the situation and embarked on a number of
successful initiatives to attract and retain customers. We were also
agile and responsive in our response to rise in food costs due to
supply chain disruptions and global logistics difficulties, and were
quick to adjust our operations to mitigate the impact of these
external factors. In addition, the Group benefited from various
forms of support and subsidies provided by the Government to
the sector throughout the period. Overall, for the first three
quarters of the year, Fairwood’s performance was very satisfactory
when set against the particular challenges and difficulties faced by
the F&B sector as a whole.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In January 2022, however, dining restrictions were further
tightened upon the outbreak of the “fifth wave” of the pandemic.
This was also a period when many diners also became more
cautious than ever about visiting restaurants. High levels of
COVID-19 infections among the public in this period also affected
restaurant traffic, and some restaurant chains in fact suspended
operations completely during this challenging period. For the F&B
sector, the final quarter was a time of significant disruption, which
required considerable patience and resilience to weather
successfully. Despite being significantly impacted by this “fifth
wave” outbreak, Fairwood remained determined to support Hong
Kong people at a time of unprecedented difficulty and disruption.
In the face of often severe logistical challenges, we kept our stores
open throughout the worst of the outbreak period, subject to
localised closures due to staff shortages. We are proud to have
been able to contribute to keeping our city going at a time that
tested the resources of many. Nevertheless, the difficult final
quarter did impact what had been to that point quite satisfactory
results for the Group.
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As mentioned, for most of the year Fairwood coped well with
COVID-19 rules, developing initiatives to address new needs and
enable diners to better manage the restrictions. Innovations and
improvements to some of our popular baked rice and pasta
dishes, and claypot dishes, were very well received and proved
especially popular as takeaway items. We also upgraded the
product quality of some dishes, and added new twists to meals
aimed at attracting younger diners. We are very aware that value
for money is an important factor in our diners’ Fairwood
experience, so to offset essential price adjustments due to rising
costs, we introduced new low-priced meal sets that gave diners
greater flexibility in their meal choices. We also made good strides
forward in sales of festive catering dishes such as pun choi and
Christmas meals, driven by an upgraded online ordering platform,
new products, and special offers.

L G

(] |
?

i

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

b

sl



ERE®mE

Chairman’s Statement

RERERBSARENIEHREERFA
%&WE e EERERMANSEER T
DEEZ - AN ERGRGETZIZEMEE
BLEEZ - FR - REEMINERGFEH
’%%m%%ﬁkﬁiﬂ RREEHLE
REEMRNIEEE - WEE— FIIMEH
SIMITMETEE %ﬁﬁ FRITINEHE
BB RO RT-_F—- AN
BEOT=ZWEHLAKY - RERAEN
BERHTYEMENINERE -

F R B AP BT E [ Click-and-Collect | 48 F
EF e HEEGEBEES L - %TA
RZZBEZZEFNALEREL W T —F
NAETHE  SEEMAEZH - R 2
1A [ Click-and-Collect® & 51 2 | # 118 K

%R;é ° Liﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ E%EJrgIJ ETE%
E&ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ °

Restrictions on in-store dining led to healthy growth in Fairwood’s
takeaway sales over the year. Takeaway services have been
especially important for our specialty restaurants, which rely
heavily on the hard-hit evening dining segment. Sales of meals
from our restaurants for home delivery via various delivery service
platforms rose significantly over the year. Fairwood's takeaway
sales were further boosted by the launch of new takeaway meal
sets designed specially for home dining, advertised through a
range of promotional programmes and purchase discounts.
Especially successful was a HK$99 for three dishes campaign,
launched in January 2022, which offered excellent value takeaway
dishes for eating at home.

Our “Click-and-Collect” online ordering platform went from
strength to strength in the year, with the percentage of Fairwood
sales being made via this platform continuing to rise steadily.
Originally launched in August 2020, the platform was upgraded in
August 2021 to further improve its user-friendliness. At the same
time, we launched a new “Click-and-Collect Customer Loyalty
Programme” which immediately proved very popular. To date,
over 260,000 members have been recruited to the programme
through various offers, fostering brand loyalty and boosting sales.
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The Group faced steady rises in both food and labour costs across
the year. To offset their impact, we looked at ways of further
optimising our menus to create more cost-effective combinations
of ingredients and dishes. We introduced a number of initiatives
to enhance productivity in our central food processing plant,
which in turn brought about improvements in the quality and
consistency of our menu items at the individual store level. We
also enhanced the internal collaboration between departments to
reduce food costs, for instance by creating improved synergies
between our procurement and menu planning teams so that
menu choices are better linked with the availability of cost-
effective ingredients.

The Group has been taking steps in recent times to further
modernise its brand image and elevate the Fairwood brand
experience, to make Fairwood even more appealing to younger
mass market consumers. In February 2022, we opened our first
store with a new 4th generation design in Mong Kok, a shopping
district popular with young people. Featuring a new brand look
that includes a sleek urban design vibe, trendy staff uniforms, and
a greater range of digital options instore, the store is acting as a
prototype for brand experience initiatives that we plan to roll out
more widely in the future.
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In October 2021, we upgraded our corporate website (https:./
www.fairwoodholdings.com.hk/en) to make it mobile friendly and
enhance the user experience. Its fresh new look and updated
corporate information has prompted significant increases in both
page views and viewing times since the new website was
launched.

Hong Kong

In the first three quarters of 2021-22, Fairwood'’s ability to adapt
to the constraints of Hong Kong's strict COVID-19 policies and its
launch of various new initiatives to drive growth resulted in a
steady overall performance. However, the “fifth wave” COVID-19
outbreak of the final quarter disrupted the market severely,
causing Fairwood's Same Store Sales Growth (“SSSG”) to fall from
+17% in the 1st half to around +10% for the full 2021-22 year.

Despite this, Fairwood delivered a positive performance for the
year, once Government subsidies of some HK$57 million are taken
into account. As mentioned above, an increased focus on
takeaway sales and enhancements to the Group'’s digital presence
proved effective in helping to counteract the inevitable impact of
the pandemic measures on Fairwood's business.

Our specialty restaurants, highly dependent on the evening dinner
segment, have shown great creativity and resilience in managing
the challenges associated with the pandemic. As society transitions
into the next phase, these restaurants are well-positioned to cater
for diners in what we expect to be a narrower market following
the shake-up in the sector caused by COVID-19.
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Mainland China

Results for the Group’s Fairwood stores in Mainland China
reflected a different set of responses to COVID-19 outbreaks
across the border from those in Hong Kong. Most parts of
Guangzhou and Shenzhen were subject to localised lockdowns in
June 2021 and March 2022, which restricted the movements of
locals and resulted in temporary store closures. As a result, the
year-on-year SSSG for Fairwood’s Mainland China stores fell from
around 10% for the first half to finish almost unchanged for the
full year. Despite this, the Group continued pushing forward with
its expansion plans in Mainland China. A further five stores were
opened there in the year, offset by the closure of one, making for
a total of 20 stores operating as at 31 March 2022. Localisation of
the Mainland management team was completed during the year,
and a new POS system was rolled out in the first half,
supplemented by an E-workflow system to enhance efficiency in
the second half. Fairwood’s collaboration with Mainland delivery
service providers such as Meituan continued to mature, pushing
up takeaway sales at its stores.

NETWORK

During the year under review, the Group opened 11 new stores,
of which six were in Hong Kong and five in Mainland China. In
the same period it closed six underperforming stores, five in Hong
Kong and one in Mainland China. As a result, at 31 March 2022 it
was operating with 177 stores, 157 in Hong Kong and 20 in
Mainland China.
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The Group's Fairwood fast food restaurant chain in Hong Kong
finished the year with 145 stores, after five were opened and five
closed during the year. As for its specialty restaurants, one
additional store was opened in the year, and at year-end there
were a total of 12 specialty stores in operation: three ASAP, one
Kenting Tea House, four Taiwan Bowl, and four The Leaf Kitchen.

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Once again this year, COVID-19 restrictions imposed constraints
on our ability to deliver our usual range of community care
initiatives. We did continue to actively promote our popular
Fairwood Care For Seniors Card, and saw the number of members
climb further to approximately 323,000. The special discounts
available through the card are much treasured by these senior
card-holders, and we continued to help them 'Live a Great Life’ by
launching regular new promotions throughout the year.

In October 2021, we revamped our Fairwood Give Warmth
programme and renamed it as the “Fairwood Care for Community
Programme” to better reflect its scope. Meanwhile, our
"Heartwarming Food Donation Programme” continued to provide
a valuable channel for meal donations to those in need. As for our
“Joyous Meal with Seniors” activities, though social distancing
restrictions impacted the number we could organise, we did
manage to provide several special meal gatherings at Fairwood
restaurants for groups of around 20 elderly people who live alone,
organised together with local NGOs.

PROSPECTS

After a final quarter of 2021-22 that tested the resilience of Hong
Kong across the board, the easing of the pandemic outbreak gives
reason for confidence looking forward. Fairwood sales began to
pick up once again towards the end of the period, and the
government’s road map for opening up helped improved
sentiment among diners. With case numbers falling, consumers
have begun to regain confidence in dining environments and
return to their favourite restaurants. As one of Hong Kong's best-
loved and most trusted fast food chains, Fairwood has quickly
benefited from this shift in mood.
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As Fairwood has changed and adapted in the face of the
pandemic, so we have continued to reflect on our history and role
in Hong Kong. Fairwood is a dynamic, adaptable and creative
Group, and we wish to reflect these qualities in our brand image.
To this end, we will be continuing to refresh and rejuvenate our
Fairwood brand in the year ahead. These brand initiatives are
especially apt because 2022 marks Fairwood’s 50th anniversary.
To celebrate Fairwood's special place in Hong Kong for over half a
century, we will be launching a major anniversary campaign later
this year.

Food and staff costs look set to rise further going forward.
Improvements in the rental market give us some scope to offset
these rises by favourable negotiations for lease renewals, but we
will also be looking at other ways of enhancing our efficiency and
productivity in the year ahead. Our staff numbers at year-end
stood at around 5,700, and it remains important for us to attract
and retain committed, well-trained staff going forward. We plan
to continue to invest time and resources into staff development
and training, which among other things will help us enhance our
succession planning and ensure steady long-term continuity in our
operations.

On the Mainland China, we expect the year ahead to move us
considerably closer to our initial goal of achieving profitability
following our initial investment phase. We will continue to open
new stores in the coming months, with the aim of establishing a
profitable network of 30 stores by the end of 2022. Our store
model in Mainland China is different from in Hong Kong,
reflecting different clientele and eating habits there; new stores
are typically smaller than Hong Kong ones, so they can be opened
more quickly and with less expense. Our Mainland Fairwood
network will be focused on the Greater Bay Area (“GBA"), where
we see very high potential, and will target a younger clientele of
office workers and professionals. The stores will all offer
convenient takeaway options, and in-store mobile ordering will be
introduced to all our Mainland China stores in 2022.
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APPRECIATION

Although no business enjoys dealing with headwinds like those
we have faced over the past year, a number of positives have
emerged from the situation for Fairwood. We once again had the
opportunity to demonstrate the spirit of resilience and adaptability
that has underpinned the Fairwood brand for the past half
century. We continued to deliver high quality, excellent value
meals to the Hong Kong public even during the height of the
pandemic, at a time when others had left the field. And, with the
help of Government support, we managed to deliver a solid
bottom line in the face of one of the most unpromising
environments ever for the F&B sector.

All this was the result of a dedicated effort from everyone
associated with Fairwood. | am proud of the Fairwood team, who
not only continued to support the first part of our motto, “Enjoy
Great Food”, but also helped realise the second part, “Live a
Great Life”, in an environment where life was tough for many.
Their efforts cannot be praised highly enough, especially in the
final quarter when many businesses were struggling to operate
normally. | would also like to thank our loyal customers, who
continued to support Fairwood even when they could not dine in
person. Thanks are also due to our suppliers and other
stakeholders, who helped us manage the challenges of ingredient
supply and maintain continuity in our operations in uncertain
times.

With the fifth wave subsiding and the F&B sector set to return to
a more normal mode of operations, we are confident that
Fairwood’s efforts to manage and overcome the pandemic over
the past year will bear fruit in the year to come. As we approach
our special 50th anniversary year, we are indeed getting ready to
celebrate not only a successful past, but a bright and prosperous
future too.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At 31 March 2022, total assets of the Group were HK$2,337.3
million (2021: HK$2,448.0 million). The Group’s net current
liabilities were HK$12.8 million (2021: HK$9.6 million),
represented by total current assets of HK$769.5 million (2021:
HK$802.3 million) against total current liabilities of HK$782.3
million (2021: HK$811.9 million). Current ratio, being the
proportion of total current assets against total current liabilities,
was 1.0 (2021: 1.0). Total equity was HK$714.2 million (2021:
HK$777.8 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2022, the
Group had bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
amounting to HK$557.1 million (2021: HK$622.1 million),
representing a decrease of 10.5%. Most bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had no bank loan and
the gearing ratio was nil, which was calculated based on the total
bank loan over the total equity. The unutilised banking facilities
were HK$335.9 million (2021: HK$269.7 million).

DEPRECIATION

The Group's depreciation of other property, plant and equipment
decreased by HK$10.0 million from HK$100.9 million to HK$90.9
million mainly due to fewer renovation works during the year.

The depreciation charges of right-of-use assets, which were
amortised the right-of-use assets in a straight-line basis over the
lease term in accordance with HKFRS 16, decreased by HK$34.8
million from HK$443.2 million to HK$408.4 million. The decrease
was primarily due to the closure of shops during the year and
impairment recognised in prior years.

FINANCE COSTS

During the year, the Group recorded the finance costs of HK$32.4
million (2021: HK$36.8 million). The finance costs represented the
interest expenses accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liabilities.
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PROFITABILITY

Return on average equity was 5.7% (2021: 20.5%), being profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, capital expenditure (excluding right-of-use assets)
was approximately HK$74.6 million (2021: HK$93.5 million). The
decrease was mainly due to fewer renovation works for new
shops and existing shops compared to last year.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation
in exchange rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at banks and other financial assets that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. As Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to United States dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong Kong
dollar exchange rate. The Group ensures that the net exposure is
kept to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short term imbalances.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 31 March 2022, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$0.9 million (2021: HK$1.0 million) and no
bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

COMMITMENTS

The Group's capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2022
were HK$27.0 million (2021: HK$7.9 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2022, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period under
these guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all
the subsidiaries that are covered by these guarantees, being
HK$88.0 million (2021: HK$89.2 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be reliably measured
and there is no transaction price.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

At 31 March 2022, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,700 (2021: 5,600). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$1,004.5 million (2021: HK$734.3 million).
The increase was mainly due to the employment support scheme
of HK$183.2 million subsidies from HKSAR Government last year.
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the
Group has committed to provide related training programme to
improve the quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, aged 70, is the Executive Chairman of
the Company and the Chairman of Nomination Committee of the
Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course on
food and beverage management at New York University. After
completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo returned to
Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company. Mr
Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. Mr Lo is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis,
the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited
which has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company
under the provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.

Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, aged 39, is the Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Francis Lo attended the
School of Computer Science at Carnegie Mellon University. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr Francis Lo held a senior management
position at an overseas restaurant and had over four years of
experience in the food and beverage industry including
management of operations, product development and business
strategy formulation. Mr Francis Lo joined the Company as
Management Trainee in August 2013. He was promoted to
Executive Manager in February 2015 and further to be Specialty
Restaurant General Manager in April 2018. Since 1 January 2019,
he has been appointed as Executive Director of the Company and
appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 1 April
2020. Mr Francis Lo is the son of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, the
Executive Chairman of the Company.
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Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 55, joined the Company in 2004. She
was appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary and
Authorized Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010
and has resigned with effect from 6 July 2022. She was also a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Ms Mak holds a
Doctorate Degree in Business Administration, a Master Degree in
Applied Business Research, a MBA Degree, a Master Degree in
Finance and a Bachelor Degree in Economics. Ms Mak is a Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants as well as an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales, CPA Australia, the Chartered Governance Institute and
the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute. She is also an
Associate Chartered Management Accountant of Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants, a Chartered Global
Management Accountant of Association of International Certified
Professional Accountants and Fellow Member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Ms Mak has extensive experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and corporate governance.
Prior to joining the Company, she had held senior management
positions in several companies the securities of which are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Ms Peggy Lee, aged 51, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms Lee obtained her MBA and Bachelor Degree in
Marketing in the U.S.A.. She has over 20 years of experience in
brand building and management, product development, retail and
sales management across different industries. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms Lee had held senior management positions with a
number of well-known companies. Ms Lee joined the Company in
February 2011 and was appointed Executive Director of the
Company on 1 January 2018.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ng Chi Keung, aged 73, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, Members of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Ng holds a Master
Degree in Business Administration. He is an Associate Member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants as well as a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr Ng has over 35 years’ experience in finance and
management. Prior to joining the Group, he held senior
management positions with a number of well-known local and
overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng joined the Company in
1994 and was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in
November 1995. On his retirement on 1 January 2010, he was re-
designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company and
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee while remaining
as a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company at
the same time. Mr Ng was later re-designated as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 6 June 2017. Mr Ng is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Soundwill Holdings
Limited which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, aged 74, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 1991. He
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
Member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong, the University of
Strathclyde and The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts Degree, a Diploma in Social Work, a Master of
Business Administration Degree and a Master of Education
Degree. He is a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management and The Hong Kong Professional
Counselling Association. Mr Chan has over 40 years’ experience in
human resources development in public, commercial and
educational sectors and is actively engaged in the professional
development of higher education student affairs practitioners and
high school careers teachers in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen, aged 69, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in September
2000. He is also the Members of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr Lau holds a
Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, a MBA Degree from the University of
Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified
Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over 12 years of
management and accounting experience in both the private and
public sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987.
He was previously an Adjunct Professor of the College of Business
at City University of Hong Kong, an external member of the
School of Business Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Baptist
University as well as the Chairman of the Advisory Committee on
management and marketing at The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. Dr Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of
Giordano International Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To, aged 69, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in September 2009. He is
also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a Member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr Wan is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was a
partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong & China firm with
extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory and
management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
namely A-Living Smart City Services Co., Ltd., China Resources
Land Limited, Haitong International Securities Group Limited and
KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited while holding the position of
Independent Director of China World Trade Centre Co., Ltd.
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr Wan is the
Treasurer and Council Member of Hong Kong Metropolitan
University (formerly known as the “Open University of Hong
Kong”). He is also the Non-executive Director of the Financial
Reporting Council. Mr Wan was an Independent Non-executive
Director of Harbin Bank Co., Ltd. until 8 October 2019, Huaneng
Renewables Corporation Limited until 28 June 2019, Kerry
Logistics Network Limited until 31 May 2019, Shanghai
Pharmaceuticals Holding Co., Ltd. until 27 June 2019 and Target
Insurance (Holdings) Limited until 9 August 2021 which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr Yip Cheuk Tak, aged 70, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in December 2021. Mr
Yip graduated from Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as
Hong Kong Baptist University) majoring in Communication in
1978 and holds Diploma in Social Science. During 1978 to 1988,
he was the Marketing and Advertising Executive for Singer Sewing
Machine Co. Ltd., Buyer and Franchise Manager for 7-Eleven
Division and Operations Vice President for Giordano Limited. In
1992, he began his career in the PRC and served as General
Manager of Tiger Enterprise Ltd. (Group of Giordano Limited) in
South China. In 1994, he was the General Manager of Pizza Hut
South China overseeing the territories of Guangdong, Guangxi
and Hainan and acquired extensive experience in the PRC food
and beverage market. Mr Yip returned to Hong Kong in July 2003
to take up the post of Chief Executive of Pizza Hut Hong Kong
and Macau. He was appointed Chief Executive of Jardine
Restaurant Group, Hong Kong and New Markets in July 2014 and
retired in 2018. Mr Yip is now serving a number of public offices,
namely, Chairman of Retail Training Advisory Committee of
Quialification Framework under Education Bureau of the HKSAR,
the Technical Advisor of Retail Trade and Member of Industry
Consultative Networks for Retail Industry of Employees Retraining
Board, the Members of both Retail Trade Training Board and
Business Administration Discipline Advisory Board of Vocational
Training Council, the Consultant of Retail Industry Commission
Advisory Committee of The Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of
Hong Kong Ltd, the Member of HKBU Communication Alumni
Association (HKBUCAA) Executive Committee of Hong Kong
Baptist University as well as an Independent Manager of
Incorporated Management Committee of Queen Elizabeth School
Old Student’s Association Tong Kwok Wah Secondary School.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting its annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM10, Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F,
TRP Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
169 and 170 of the annual report.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the “Business Review"” and “Prospects”
set out on pages 9 to 17 of this annual report while the risk
management policy is on pages 56 to 60 of the Corporate
Governance Report.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations
of the operations of the Group during the financial year are set
out in note 3(b) to the financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING

As part of the community, the Group strives to support the
environmental protection works, to strictly comply with the
relevant rules and regulations and to consider the material aspects
of our stakeholders. The comprehensive information related to our
operating principles on our employees, food quality and safety,
environment and customers will be further discussed in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will be
published in the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in due
course.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
report, the Board was not aware of any non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and the respective jurisdiction of the place of incorporation of the
Company and subsidiaries that have significant impact on the
Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of
revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2021: less than
30%) of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK25.0 cents (2021: HK30.0 cents) per
share was paid on 31 December 2021. The Board now
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK40.0 cents (2021:
HK60.0 cents) per share in respect of the year ended 31 March
2022.

More information about the Company’s dividend policy is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report.

ADOPTION OF CHINESE NAME AS SECONDARY
NAME OF THE COMPANY

The special resolution in relation to the adoption of Chinese Name
"RPRSEEEABR AT as Secondary Name was duly passed by
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the
Annual General Meeting held on 9 September 2021 and became
effective with effect from 8 October 2021. Meanwhile, the
adoption of Chinese stock short name " AR;E&E" for trading
in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange became
effective with effect from 24 November 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no charitable donation has
been made by the Group (2021: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company issued
20,000 ordinary shares of the Company pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company (“Share Option Scheme”). Details
of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.
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DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

At 31 March 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity Shareholders was HK$446,048,000 (2021:
HK$356,068,000). After the end of the reporting period, the
Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) proposed a final
dividend of HK40.0 cents (2021: HK60.0 cents) per share
amounting to HK$51,821,000 (2021: HK$77,720,000). The
dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Meji*

Peggy Lee

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo (retired on 9 September 2021)
Peter Wan Kam To

Yip Cheuk Tak (appointed on 1 December 2021)

*  Ms. Mak Yee Mei has resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 6 July
2022.

In accordance with Bye-laws 100 of the Company, Mr Yip Cheuk
Tak, appointed on 1 December 2021, will hold office until the
next annual general meeting of the Company. Mr Yip Cheuk Tak
shall then retire at the Company’s forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-laws 109(A) and 189(viii) of the Company, Mr
Ng Chi Keung and Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin shall retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Ng Chi Keung and Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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Personal
interests

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
were as follows:

(a)

Interests in the Company

SREGESE 1 TLRR
Ordinary Shares of HK$1 each

ntége
of total
issued shares

Other
EENY

shares pursuant to
share options

Family
interests

Corporate

EENY Total

EF5 Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 - - 55435384 - 55,544,384 42.87%
(FitzE1)
(Note 1)
BB Lo Fai Shing Francis - - - 55,435,384 1,080,000 56,515,384 43.62%
(FFzE1)
(Note 1)
B Mak Yee Mei 1,180,000 - - - 520,000 1,700,000 1.31%
FEH Peggy Lee 402,000 - - - 393,000 795,000 061%
BEET : L E A% 1% A Neblett Investments Limited Note 1:  These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited (“Neblett”)

(I'Neblett |) 52 CFJ Holdings Limited ([ CFJ )
BB ZERRD R AMIENLERS
LR ERELE ABIBESHERN
EAMERER BHEBLERERE
AEEREEAZSERNBBEER
HEMER  XHR5AARTNH
TERRPTEERITRER - W
15,1 1% 75 Neblett & CFJ 5 A B 1 8
TS

and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ”). These companies are beneficially
owned by two separate trusts of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis are the discretionary objects. Both Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis, by virtue of
their interests in the trusts as the discretionary objects and as the
Executive Chairman and Executive Director & Chief Executive
Officer of the Company respectively, were deemed interested in
the shares held by Neblett and CFJ.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

BERERREERNHEAE
Number of non-voting deferred shares
H s

Other
interests

&A=
Personal
IEESS

AR
Corporate
interests

KRG
Family
IEESS

ZEFHE Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - 279,357 - 290,857
(BfzE2)
(Note 2)

MizE2 + I ZRARP B Pengto International Limited Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited, a

FE  RARRERBELBANES -

L FrEREED RER o

B a2 TSI BERR AT &) | — &I BE
O AR BB RR B A DI S 3521548
EEFHECMBER  IRBIZESTR
AE M A AR R LB ER R
T _FZA=Z+—H ARFESF
i m T A B St PR E AT EEAB 3R
WMT AR TLZ 8 EEARQRRE
EAES AR (AFEFEHEHEXVI
FREiME R ) ARG - HBRERR G S E#EE
R E (A H AR BOAR A o

EERERTRABREERE M
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company owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung solely.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the
section “Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March
2022, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen
years of age had any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which had been entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executive’s interests under the
Share Option Scheme are also set out in the section “Share

Option Scheme” below.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 6 September 2021, the current Share Option Scheme which
was adopted on 7 September 2011 has been expired (the “2011

Share Option Scheme”).

A new Share Option Scheme was

approved by the Shareholders and adopted on 9 September 2021
(the "2021 Share Option Scheme”). Upon expiration of the 2011
Share Option Scheme, no further options will be granted
thereunder. However, the options which had been granted under
the 2011 Share Option Scheme prior to such expiration will
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules
of 2011 Share Option Scheme. Summary details of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme and 2021 Share Option Scheme as at 31 March
2022 are set out below:

(A) 2011 Share Option Scheme

(a)

The purpose of the 2011 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s businesses; to provide
incentives or rewards to any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or officer of any member of
the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote
the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to Shareholders.

Under the 2011 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take up options
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
which shall not be less than whichever is the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

As at 6 September 2021 (being the date of expiration),
the total number of shares available for issue under the
2011 Share Option Scheme is 1,343,528 shares which
represented approximately 1.04% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date. The maximum
entitlement for any one participant under the 2011
Share Option Scheme shall not in any twelve months
period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of the
Company'’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme was 10
years commenced on 7 September 2011 and expired
on 6 September 2021.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
(B) 2021 Share Option Scheme
(a)

(0)

The purpose of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is to
attract and retain the best quality personnel for the
development of the Company’s businesses; to provide
incentives or rewards to any employee, Director
(including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or officer of any member of
the Group (the “2021 Option Scheme Eligible Person”)
and to promote the long term financial success of the
Company by aligning the interests of option holders to
Shareholders.

Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme, Directors were
authorised, at their discretion, to invite any of the 2021
Option Scheme Eligible Person to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which
shall not be less than whichever is the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

As at 31 March 2022, the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
2021 Share Option Scheme is 12,955,278 shares being
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
9 September 2021. The maximum entitlement for any
one participant under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
shall not in any twelve months period up to the date of
grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is 10 years
commencing on 9 September 2021 and expiring on 8
September 2031.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no option had been
granted by the Company under 2021 Share Option Scheme since
it has been adopted. The Directors and employees of the Group
had the following interests in options to subscribe for shares of
the Company (market value per share at 31 March 2022 was

HK$15.20 (2021:

HK$17.02)) granted for HK$1 consideration

under the 2011 Share Option Scheme.
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Number of

options

outstanding

Date Exercisable at 1 April
granted period 2021

BER(EF) @ =T—h#% ZERE 40,000
Lo Fai Shing Francis MA=+H mA—H
(Director) (a) 20 April 2015 ETE-CF
=A=1+-H
(M5ET)
1 April 2016
t0 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

(b)) =Z=ZF —T--F 40,000
+ARE WA—A
(b)6July2020 E-FT-+HF
=A=t+—-H
GED)
1 April 2021
t0 31 March 2027
(Note 4)

(=—ZT-_ZF k- Stk 3 1,000,000
AVER=! MA—H
(©10August ~ EZT-LF
2020 =A=1+—-H
GETY
1 April 2021
t0 31 March 2027
(Note 4)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the total grant date fair value of unexercised
vested options and unvested options, measured in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q)(ii) to the financial
statements, amounted to HK$7,975,000 (2021: HK$8,701,000)
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. The options are unlisted.
Once vested, each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of HK$1 each of the Company. Assuming
that all the options outstanding as at 31 March 2022 are
exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of HK$89,091,000
(2021: HK$97,627,000).

Weighted averag

Closing price price of closing

Number of - Number of Number of Number of Number of per share price per share
options options options options options immediately immediately
granted lapsed  cancelled  exercised  outstanding  Exercise  before date before date
during during during during  at 31 March price of grant of exercise
theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 2022 pershare  of options of options

HKS HKS HKS

- - - - 40,000 20.70 20.80 -

- - - - 40,000  17.90 17.84 -

- - - - 1,000,000  17.08 17.12 -
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Mak Yee Mei
(Director)

FERE(EF)
Pegay Lee
(Director)

Date
granted

@=F—1%
MA=+H
(a) 20 April 2015

b =Z=ZF
NA+A

(b) 10 August
2020

(@ ==—1%F
MA=+H
(a) 20 April 2015

b =ZE—8F
+A=A

(b) 2 October
2015

(c) 10 August
2020

TEEERAE

Exercisable
period

—ERF
mA—A
EE-__F
=R=+-H
GEaN

1 April 2016

t0 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

—E-fF
MA—A
ER_4F
I =
GED)

1 April 2021

t0 31 March 2027
(Note 4)

2%
WA—A
R-E-CF
=A=t+—-H
GES

1 April 2016

to 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

—ZE-RF
+A-A
E-TCCF
NA=+H
GEYY

1 October 2016
to 30 September
2022

(Note 2)

—E-fF
mA—H
EZFCLF
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(Ms4)

1 April 2021

t0 31 March 2027
(Note 4)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of Number of
options options
outstanding  granted
at 1 April during
2021 theyear

220,000 -

300,000 -

60,000 -

33,000 -

300,000 -

Number of
options
lapsed
during

the year

Number of
options
cancelled
during

the year

Number of
options
exercised
during

the year

Number of
options
outstanding
at 31 March
2022

220,000

300,000

60,000

33,000

300,000

Exercise
price

per share
s

HKS

20.70

17.08

20.70

2220

17.08

Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options
&

i3
Bm

HKS

20.80

17.12

20.80

21.90

17.12

Weighted average
price of closing
price per share

immediately

before date
of exercise
of option

2 i
B
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Employees

B8

Employee

B8

Employees

E&

Employees

&8

Employee

Date
granted

20 April 2015

—T)N\F
+=ZA+NR
18 December
2018

ZZC-TF
+A~A
6 July 2020

—T-%F
NA+A
10 August 2020

—Z-%F
+ZRA=tH
30 December
2020
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Exercisable

1 April 2016
t0 31 March 2022
(Note 1)

—Z-hE
+A-AH
Z-F20RF
nAA=t+H
(Fi5£3)

1 October 2019
to 30 September
2025

(Note 3)

1 April 2021
t0 31 March 2027
(Note 4)

—TE-—fF
MA—H
E-FC4F
=A=1+-H
(GiEZY

1 April 2021

t0 31 March 2027
(Note 4)

—E-F
+=ZA—-H
ZITC4F
+—A=1A
(BI3E5)

1 December 2021
to 30 November
2027

(Note 5)

Number of
options
outstanding
at 1 April
2021

1,303,500

30,000

940,000

720,000

300,000

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Number of
options
granted

during
the year

Number of - Number of

options
lapsed
during
the year

(197,000)

(230,000)

options
cancelled
during
the year

Number of
options
exercised
during
the year

(20,000)

Number of
options
outstanding
at 31 March
2022

1,106,500

30,000

710,000

700,000

300,000

Exercise
price

per share
£ i

=

HKS

20.70

26.42

17.90

17.08

17.76

‘ Weighted average

Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options
S

B

2635

17.84

17.12

17.70

price of closing
price per share
immediately
before date

of exercise

17.40
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 April 2016,
15% on 1 April 2017, 20% on 1 April 2018, 25% on 1 April 2019 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2020;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 October
2016, 15% on 1 October 2017, 20% on 1 October 2018, 25% on 1
October 2019 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2020;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 October
2019, 15% on 1 October 2020, 20% on 1 October 2021, 25% on 1
October 2022 and the remaining 30% on 1 October 2023;

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 April 2021,
15% on 1 April 2022, 20% on 1 April 2023, 25% on 1 April 2024 and
the remaining 30% on 1 April 2025; and

These options shall vest in five tranches as follows : 10% on 1 December
2021, 15% on 1 December 2022, 20% on 1 December 2023, 25% on 1
December 2024 and the remaining 30% on 1 December 2025.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
and the weighted average value per option is provided in note
1(qg)(ii) and note 20 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of every
person, other than the Directors and chief executive of the
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, were as follows:

{RE 317

& 17 42 £k
Aotk
Percentage
of total
issued shares

BERSH
Lk
R e

Shares directly
and/or
indirectly held

(i) Neblett (FfF5E1) (i) Neblett (Note 1) 48,775,384 37.65%
(i) CFJ (i) CFJ 6,660,000 5.14%
(iii) Winning Spirit International Corp. (iii) Winning Spirit International Corp. 48,775,384 37.65%
(fwsicl) (fiF&E1) ("WSIC") (Note 1)
(iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited (iv) HSBC International Trustee Limited 55,438,384 42.79%
(THITLY) (Me7E2) ("HITL") (Note 2)
MizE1 : EEREER —ItHNeblett E#35E 2% Note 1:  These interests represented the same block of shares directly held by
5 o WSIC # 5 Neblett 89 100% # %5 + 848 Neblett. WSIC owned 100% interest in Neblett and was therefore
BYEB Neblett FTEESBRMDEER & deemed interested in the shares directly held by Neblett; and
M2 . BHTLEAZSHMET Y S5 AMBEA3,000 Note2: Except for 3,000 shares held by HITL as trustee for other trusts, these

B& (0 Hh - b S5 2529 8 [R] — Bt B Neblett &
CREEERZKG, - HITLTY & W 8 A 2 5
Bk (BRI ABERAER) REBAL
F(ARBEEZHR)NETXZETA  HE
WSIC M CFIEI100% #E @ - R AEE E
M AR FTEE T B RGO -

LT ERSEYARTE -
B BT TN RZE - F=A=+—
B AR RERESIEF E 336 KB TME

EOERMAH - WEBTAR AR K40
R 9 B L RS R o

interests represented the same block of shares directly held by Neblett
and CFJ. HITL, in its capacity as a trustee of two separate trusts of which
Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (as founder and discretionary object) and Mr Lo
Fai Shing Francis (as discretionary object), owned 100% interest in WSIC
and CFJ and was therefore deemed interested in the shares directly held
by these companies.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2022.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The particulars of the following connected transactions of the
Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@) Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

On 26 February 2021, FFFL (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a
tenancy agreement with Hibony, as landlord, to renew the
lease for a term of three years from 1 March 2021 to 29
February 2024 (both days inclusive) with an option to renew
for further three years to operate a fast food restaurant.
Hibony is a connected person of the Company by virtue of
being an associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive
Chairman and substantial Shareholder). Thus, the said
tenancy agreement with Hibony constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Details of the said tenancy agreement with Hibony are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 26
February 2021.

At 31 March 2022, the value of the right-of-use asset to be
recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreement with
Hibony is approximately HK$9,139,000 (2021
HK$11,135,000).

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Tenancy agreement with New Champion
International Limited (“New Champion”)

On 8 April 2021, FFFL (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with New Champion, as landlord, to renew the
lease for a term of three years from 10 April 2021 to 9 April
2024 (both days inclusive) with an option to renew for
further three years to operate a fast food restaurant. New
Champion is a connected person of the Company by virtue
of being an associate of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive
Chairman and substantial Shareholder) and Mr Lo Fai Shing
Francis (Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company), the said tenancy agreement with New Champion
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

Details of the tenancy agreement with New Champion are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 8 April
2021.

At 31 March 2022, the value of the right-of-use asset to be
recognised by the Group under the tenancy agreement with
New Champion is approximately HK$10,675,000 (2021 :
HK$12,939,000).

As these transactions contemplated under the tenancy agreements
with Hibony and New Champion were related and to be
completed within 12-month period, these transactions shall be
aggregated and treated as if they were one transaction under Rule
14A.81 of the Listing Rules which were subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but were exempt from the
circular and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions and material related party
transactions are set out in “Connected transactions” on pages 39
and 40 and in note 27 to the financial statements respectively.

Save for the above, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the Group's business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save for the “Share Option Scheme” as set out in this annual
report, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the “Share Option Scheme” as set out in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreement that would or might result in
the Company issuing shares, or that required the Company to
enter into an agreement that would or might result in the
Company issuing shares, was entered into by the Company during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company did not
issue any debenture.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, every director or other
officer of the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets of the Company from and against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has maintained directors’ liability insurance which is
in force throughout the year and up to the date of this annual
report to provide appropriate insurance cover for the Directors.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BANK LOAN

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had no bank
loan (2021: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 171 of the
annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown
on page 172 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars
of the MPF Scheme are set out in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2022,
save and except that the Chairman and/or Managing Director (Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are not subject to retirement by
rotation, details of which and the reasons for the deviation are
stated below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
have taken decisions objectively in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders at all times. The Board recognises that
corporate governance should be the collective responsibility of all
Directors and thus, it has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions that are in line with the CG Code.

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control, financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is supported by three board committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. Each board committee has been constituted
with terms of reference setting out their composition, authorities
and duties approved by the Board and its recommendation or
decision on the matters within its terms of reference. Summary of
each committee’s works is disclosed in the subsequent sections of
this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material
matters of the Company. With the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that
all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner. Where decisions to be taken by the Board require
specialised knowledge or expert opinion, Directors may choose to
take independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses, upon making request to the Board.

When director has a conflict of interest in a transaction or
proposed transaction with the Company, the matter shall be dealt
with by physical board meeting. Each Director is required to
promptly disclose any actual, potential and perceived conflict of
interest, in relation to a transaction or proposed transaction with
the Company as soon as practicable after the relevant facts have
come to his/her knowledge. Any Director facing a conflict of
interest will recuse himself/herself from the discussions and
abstain from participating in any Board decisions and voting on
resolutions regarding the matter.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the four Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. Directors may request for explanations, briefings
by or discussions with senior management on any aspect of the
Company’s operations or business. The delegated functions and
work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the above-mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei”

Peggy Lee

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")

Ng Chi Keung

Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Peter Wan Kam To

Yip Cheuk Tak (appointed on 1 December 2021)

*  Ms. Mak Yee Mei has resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 6 July

2022.
APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Biographical details of all Directors are set out on pages 22 to 26
of this annual report. A list containing the names of the Directors
with their roles and functions has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
(Executive Chairman) is the father of Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis.
Other than the family relationship disclosed above, there is no
relationship among Directors of the Board and in particular,
between the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
March 2022 and attendance record of each Director is set out
below:

LN
=N
Number of

meetings
attended/held

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4
Peggy Lee 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ng Chi Keung 4/4
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

(retired on 9 September 2021) 1/4
Yip Cheuk Tak

(appointed on 1 December 2021) 2/4
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations on all Board appointments and re-appointment.
Details of the formal and transparent process in the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors are set out in the section
“Nomination Policy” below.

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) to appoint any person recommended by the
Nomination Committee as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual
general meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible
for re-election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors (other than any Director holding office as
Chairman or Managing Director) for the time being or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office
provided that each Director (other than any Director holding office
as Chairman or Managing Director) including those appointed for
a specific term shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Currently, all INEDs are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by the
Shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director are available at the website of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Lo Fai Shing Francis respectively.
The Chairman is primarily responsible for the leadership of the
Board, ensuring that (i) the Board works effectively and performs
its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed in a timely manner; (i) the Directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meetings and (iii) the Directors receive
accurate, clear, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group's business. Their roles are clearly
segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (continued)

Code provision A.4.2 (subsequently rearranged and renumbered
as B.2.2 with effect from 1 January 2022) of the CG Code
stipulates that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years; however, the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company are not subject to retirement by rotation
under the Bye-laws. The Board considers that the exemption of
both the Chairman and the Managing Director (the Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company from such retirement by
rotation provisions would provide the Group with strong and
consistent leadership, efficient use of resources, effective planning,
formulation and implementation of long-term strategies and
business plans. The Board believes that it would be in the best
interest of the Company for such Directors to continue to be
exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. There is no INED holding more
than seven listed company directorships.

The representation of INEDs is more than one third of the Board.
The Company has received from each INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any
relationship or circumstance which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgement of the INEDs. All the INEDs
are considered to be independent.

Re-election of INEDs (including those who have served the
Company for more than nine years) shall be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by Shareholders at the annual general
meeting. The documentation to Shareholders accompanying the
proposal of re-election of INED who has served more than nine
years would state why the Board believes that such INED is still
independent and should be re-elected, the process of the Board in
arriving at such determination.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND INDUCTION TO NEW
DIRECTOR

Upon appointment to the Board, Director is provided induction
training, such as provision of training material (including relevant
guidelines, governance policies and financial reports), to ensure
he/she has a thorough understanding of the Group as well as his/
her role and responsibilities.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development activities
either by reading materials or by attending training courses/
seminars (as summarised as below) to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and skills of a director
of a listed corporation.

MEER KL
s E
RIEHa e
Reading
Materials

and/or
Attending
Training
Courses/
Seminars

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Peggy Lee

AR NRNEN

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ng Chi Keung
Joseph Chan Kai Nin
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen
Peter Wan Kam To
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo
(retired on 9 September 2021)
Yip Cheuk Tak
(appointed on 1 December 2021) v
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The Company Secretary provides regular updates on the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the Directors
with reading materials relating to the latest development of
regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED




EEERRE
Corporate Governance Report

EHEXHPHFETH
RATERME A LR+ g
TABBEITESFR BRZEST A ([1ZESF
Al fEREEETEERIZNSTA - EARA
AIEEZNAE  2EREEER  BERHEZE=
T FZA=+—HIFEEANDETIEES
BIFTIR B A IR ZE ©

REER®
REZBEENEBRREMEBILIFNITESS
HEELRFRELL  BERBEERREE
BEgXF - REZBEQZRRBEENALEE
JASTRIARRE - W TSR AR B MR AT
Bk o

REZBEEHEERIEFTEORE - ABLME
B R IFITERNBIYE - ek
AEFERRLAEREAAFBRBENBIR
FFERELETER - MERE - TEREF
SIRHANA R R RIE AR

Z LR

REARBDEEZ TEBRR(ZTERE])
THEFENEUNEN /KR LERXDERE
ZHCEZTE 2B m - MABTRKE - Xt
MEBEER  FELR M5 FREEME
g -REZESCEREYELTHESTEN
BEREA  WERRBENBRT  sLEH
REREFREMESSRIES - REAN
BERERARRNRRARRLEREEZ T
BR - -BEFTERA ZILBRERERRAR
REFERNER FEFSERLEXFER
SRESRENERENRRTR -

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquiry by the
Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2022.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter Lau
Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are in line with the CG
Code and are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessment the
independence of INEDs, identifies and recommends to the Board
suitable candidate(s) to stand for election by Shareholders at
annual general meeting, or when necessary, to fill vacancies on
the Board.

Policy for Board Diversity

Under the Policy for Board Diversity of the Company (the “Diversity
Policy”), appointment of Board members will be made on merit
with due regard of benefits of diversity on the Board, such as
having differences in the skills, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, gender, age and other
qualities of directors. The Nomination Committee has been
delegated authority to identify and assess potential candidates for
appointment to the Board, and if thought fit, to nominate and
make recommendations to the Board in respect of new
appointments and re-appointments. Selection of candidates will
be based on the Company’s Nomination Policy taking into account
the Diversity Policy. The Board believes that the Diversity Policy will
promote effective decision-making and better governance and
allow the Board to consider a wider range of options and solutions
to corporate issues.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedure when considering the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors to ensure a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirement of the Company's
business.

The selection criteria including but not limited to the following:

(a

(b)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Age, gender, skills, cultural and educational background,
professional experience and other qualities of the candidate;

Effect of such appointment on the Board's composition and
diversity;

Potential contributions a candidate can bring to the Board in
terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence and
gender diversity;

Needs of the Board for particular expertise, skills or
experience;

Commitment to devote adequate time to discharge his or
her duties as a member of the Board;

Any potential or actual conflict of interests that may arise if
the candidate is selected;

For appointment of the INED, the number of years the
candidate has served and the factors as set out in the Listing

Rules for determining the independence; and

Other factors considered to be relevant by the Nomination
Committee on a case-by-case basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Under the Nomination Policy, nomination procedure is
summarized as below:

(a

For appointment of new Director(s) by the Board, the
Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board to identify
suitable candidates (or may seek assistance from external
consultancy agencies, if necessary) and evaluate potential
candidates based on the selection criteria set out above
through a physical meeting (unless it is impractical that the
physical meeting be held) to rank the candidates by order of
preference based on the selection criteria and determine
whether the candidate is qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee shall provide all relevant information
of the potential candidate (may including the terms and
conditions of the appointment) and make recommendation
to the Board for consideration and the Board, if considered
appropriate, shall approve the appointment of the proposed
candidate as new Director(s).

For re-appointment of Director(s) in a general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee is delegated by the
Board to review the overall contribution made by the retiring
Director(s) and take into account the selection criteria set out
above before make recommendation to the Board for re-
appointment. Also, the Nomination Committee shall conduct
such review through a physical meeting (unless it is
impractical that a physical meeting be held). Based on the
review made by the Nomination Committee, the Board shall
make recommendation to the Shareholders on retiring
Director(s) standing for re-election at the annual general
meeting and provide the biographical information of the
retiring Director(s) in accordance with the Listing Rules to
enable the Shareholders to make an informed decision on
the re-election of such Director(s) at the annual general
meeting.

For any candidate (other than a Retiring Director(s))
nominated by the Board or Shareholders to stand for
election as a Director in a general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal of nomination and the biographical information of
the candidate(s), evaluate his/her/their suitability based on
the same criteria set out above. The Board, under advice of
the Nomination Committee, may or may not make
recommendation to Shareholders on their voting to the
proposed election in the relevant announcement and/or
circular to Shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board; to assess the independence of INEDs; to make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Directors and appointment of INED pursuant to the Nomination
Policy.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

H RS

Ly i¥ENL
N

Number of meetings

attended/held

BITES Executive Director

EFEG (EE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Chairman) 212

BYFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

2| B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 2/2

Fi8H Peter Wan Kam To 22
FHMERE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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The Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, Mr Ng Chi
Keung, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen. Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. Remuneration Committee adopts written terms of
reference that are in line with the CG Code and are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters and making
recommendations on the same to the Board for approval.
Remuneration of Directors is determined with reference to their
duties and responsibilities, experience, time commitment and
prevailing market practice.

Remuneration payable to Directors and individuals with highest
emoluments are set out on pages 116 to 119 of the annual
report. Furthermore, no share option has been granted to INEDs
since their appointment.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held to assess performance of
executive directors, annual review the remuneration of Directors
and approve the terms of newly appointed INED’s service
contracts.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HE RS EFIRE
Number of meetings

attended/held

BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

PREREE (/%) Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 22

RER Ng Chi Keung 2/2

2)|[R 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 2/2
FRERY AUDIT COMMITTEE

ERZEENEBERENABIFNTESERE
SREEE  REFELE - BERFEE(R T
—FNANBRE) RFRELE - EREZE
EHFRELEERETRE  BFAERLARFK
BENELEITMREGH ©

ERZEENIEREERGEREEFTONE
ZH > BHPBHRERLARE  AEEARERS
FHAD - BRI BRAD Sk S ES A BB AT R H O 2 AR
BRSNS IER - RRE A BRINEEH
AR B EE LMY - URANRARMERR -
[\ B HE I R RR BRI R AR ELARRR AR PRV R R 1
R - BZERE G BERECTALERE
JASTRIRRE - 2 TIER AR B MBS P
Bk o

The Audit Committee comprises four INEDs, Mr Ng Chi Keung, Mr
Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo (retired on 9
September 2021) and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Peter Wan Kam
To is the chairman of the Audit Committee which meets at least
twice a year with the Company’s auditor.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board for approval.
It is also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the
external audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system and associated procedures. The Audit
Committee has written terms of reference which are in line with
the CG Code and are available on websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditor of
the Company about its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Company is set out on pages 68 to 70 in the
Independent Auditor’s Report. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of
external auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their
independence and the nature and scope of the audit; to review
the internal audit programme, findings and management'’s
responses; and to evaluate the system of internal controls and risk
management of the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

s
SHEINE
Number of

meetings
attended/held

Independent Non-executive Directors

Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 2/2
Ng Chi Keung 2/2
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 2/2
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

(retired on 9 September 2021) 172
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BE_ZT-__F=A=+—HItFEER  gtZ&x During the year ended 31 March 2022, the fees paid/payable to
NEIZHENIR B RIEER RS, the auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
JE N FRZEEMMBERMT ¢ the auditor of the Company were as follows:
B F
2022
BT T
HK$'000
FHIEEEMB Review fee for interim results 560 556
PEEIERLE Audit fee for final results 3,293 3,297
BIEREREE R REH Non-audit services which covered
FEEZ RIS provision of tax compliance services 424 223
“azE Total 4,277 4,076
NFHE COMPANY SECRETARY
HE-_T-—H#=RA=+HILEER ' 2472 During the year ended 31 March 2022, Ms Mak Yee Mei is the
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Company Secretary and Executive Director of the Company. As
the Company Secretary, Ms Mak supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and the Board procedures
and all applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. Further,
she undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the Group
may be exposed to, the Board is responsible for establishing and
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
has been properly conducted.

With delegation from the Board, the Audit Committee has already
reviewed its risk management framework and processes and has
implemented relevant measures resulting from this exercise that
aim to enhance its framework and processes. In particular, the
Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is supported by its approved risk
management policy. Moreover, the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee has included its responsibility for an effective
system of internal control and risk management.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure

The Group's governance structure for its risk management system
is shown in the diagram below. Each party has well defined roles
and responsibilities.
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Board of Directors
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Department Heads

The major roles and responsibilities of each party are as follows:

Board of Directors

o Is ultimately responsible for the risk management and
internal controls of the Group;

o Evaluates and provide direction to the Group on the nature
and extent of the risks that shall be taken in achieving its
objectives (i.e. setting the risk appetite); and

. Ensures the review of the effectiveness of the risk

management and internal control systems is conducted at
least annually.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)
Audit Committee

Reviews the Group’s risk management framework and
internal controls with the Risk Management Working Group
at least annually, on behalf of the Board,;

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment during the
Audit Committee meeting, including the nature and extent
of significant risks and the Group's ability to respond to
changes in these risks and in its business and the external
environment;

Considers the results of any investigation into the Group's
risk management framework and internal controls, as
delegated by the Board or that it performs on its own
initiative, and the management'’s responses to the findings
of such investigations; and

Performs an annual review of the Internal Audit Department
including the adequacy of its budget and resources, the
qualifications and experience of its management and staff,
and the quality of its training program.

Risk Management Working Group

Assists the Board and Audit Committee in overseeing the
risk management framework;

Provides recommendations to the Board and Audit
Committee relating to the design or modification of the risk
management framework; and

Reviews the results of the annual risk assessment and
submits these to the Audit Committee for its review.

Internal Audit Department

Acts as independent assessor of the risk management system
by performing assessments of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management system; and

Reports to the Audit Committee on the results of its
independent assessments.
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Governance Structure (continued)

Department Heads

e Act as risk owners and manage risks during their day-to-day
operations;

o Identify and assess risks associated with business activities
within their own departments; and

e Implement risk mitigation plans to remedy the identified
risks.

Risk Assessment Methodology

The Group’s methodology for its risk assessment comprises of six
core phases, namely risk identification, risk appetite formulation,
risk assessment and measurement, formulation or update of key
risk register, risk monitoring and reporting, and disclosures. These
processes are performed at least once a year to address changes
in the Group's business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted an annual
review on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 March 2022, covering all
material controls such as strategic, operational, financial and
regulatory controls. The Internal Audit Department had performed
independent reviews of the risk management system and had
reported the results to the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, also conducted an
annual review of the Internal Audit Department, and accounting
and financial reporting functions, including the adequacy of their
budget and resources, the qualifications and experience of
management and staff, and the quality of its training program, in
order to ensure that they are able to provide sufficient coverage of
the Group’s key risk issues.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OVERVIEW OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Our Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while the management is responsible to design and
implement an internal control system to manage risks. The Board
is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied with the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems currently put in place for the Group.

Communications of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Group and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Group to make appropriate
decisions and responses to mitigate or address any risk events,
relevant information on the incident needs to be communicated
by and to the right functions and individuals, completely and
accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, written policy has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communication. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of Shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend Shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly. These meetings provide
opportunities for the Board to engage with the Shareholders for
soliciting their feedback. Further, the external auditor shall attend
Shareholders’ meetings to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.

Directors had attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 9 September 2021 with the attendance records
as follows:
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Annual

general
meeting
attended/held

HITES Executive Directors
#FAEG (ATEE) Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 1/1
BB (TTIAEEL) Lo Fai Shing Francis (Chief Executive Officer) 11
BT Mak Yee Mei 1/1
) Peggy Lee 01
BAFBTES Independent Non-executive Directors
RERA Ng Chi Keung 11
PREZE Joseph Chan Kai Nin 11
2| B 4 Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11
FiRH Peter Wan Kam To 11
%%%2 Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

(R=ZZF=Z—FNANAEREF) (retired on 9 September 2021) 01

WIBEAZEELRRY - EmRALZRE4  Subject to the applicable laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
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and the Bye-laws, Shareholders may convene special general
meetings of the Company and put forward proposals at general
meetings. Procedures on how Shareholders can convene a special
general meetings, put forward proposals at Shareholders’
meetings and propose a person for election as a director are also
available at the Company’s website for Shareholders’ information.

APREEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

(continued)

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company's website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically. Shareholders may also at any time send
their enquiries and concerns in writing to the Company through
channel set out in the “IR Contact” at the section of Investor
Relations at the Company’s website.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) which sets out the criteria to be adopted when
considering declaration and payment of dividend with aims to
provide stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders.

The Board may consider declaring and paying to the Shareholders
by taking into account of the following factors, among others, (i)
financial performance; (ii) retained earnings and distributable
reserve; (iii) cash flow; (iv) debt to equity ratio; (v) working capital
requirements; (vi) capital expenditure requirements; (vii)
investment requirements; (viii) future prospects and expansion
plans; (ix) general business conditions and strategies; (x) general
economic conditions and (xi) other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
remain to be determined at the sole discretion of the Board and
subject to all applicable laws of Bermuda and the Bye-laws.

The Board shall review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
shall update, amend or modify it whenever necessary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2022. Resolutions for
amendments to the Company’s Bye-laws will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, the details of which are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 29 July 2022.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
("the Group”) set out on pages 71 to 170, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

provide a separate opinion on this matter.

FEEREEEUAR MY HBENRENEERE

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
HRRRE B IREN T 10/ 11 F15 92 £ 94 B A& 5T ©
Refer to note 10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 92 to 94
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The key audit matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Local economic conditions and the level of competition
from other similar restaurants impact the performance of
the Group's fast food restaurants. Therefore there is a risk
that the values of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment (which generally comprises leasehold
improvements, equipment, air conditioning systems and
cutlery and utensils), in certain restaurants may not be
recoverable in full through the future cash flows to be
generated from the operations of those restaurants or from
disposal of the related right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment.

Management reviews the performance of individual
restaurants at the end of each reporting period to identify if
any restaurant displays negative performance indicators
(“indicators") which could indicate impairment.
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Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
right-of-use assets and other property, plant and equipment
included the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of impairment
indicators and considering whether the discounted cash
flow forecasts on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis
supported the carrying value of the relevant assets and
assessing the methodology adopted by management in
its preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards. We also considered whether the
management’s impairment assessments indicated that a
reversal of previously recognised impairment was
required,;
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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Where indicators of impairment are identified, the value in
use of the right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment in these restaurants is determined by
management on a restaurant-by-restaurant basis based on
a discounted cash flow analysis. Based on the assessment,
the Group recognised an impairment loss of HK$49.3
million for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The value in use model used to assess the risk of
impairment is based on a number of assumptions, including
estimations of future revenue, food cost inflation, staff cost
inflation and the discount rate applied.

We identified assessing potential impairment of right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment as a key
audit matter because of the significance of right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment to the
consolidated financial statements and because of the
significant management judgement and estimation
required, which can be subjective.

BENEHNAEEZSBE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

e comparing the actual performance and results of the
selected restaurants for the current year with the key
assumptions and forecasts adopted by management in
the discounted cash flow forecasts for the prior year to
assess whether there is any indication of management
bias and making enquiries of management as to the
reasons for any significant variations identified and
whether these were considered in the current year’s key
assumptions and forecasts;

e critically evaluating the key assumptions and forecasts
adopted by management in its preparation of the
discounted cash flow forecasts by referring to industry
information, recent financial performance of the fast food
operations and management’s budgets and plans for the
operations in 2022/2023 and beyond;

e assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar listed
catering groups and taking into consideration location
and company specific risk premiums;

e obtaining management’s sensitivity analyses of the
discount rates, future revenue, food cost inflation and
staff cost inflation and considering the resulting impact
on the impairment charge for the year and whether there
is any indicator of management bias; and

e assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets and other
property, plant and equipment, with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging

their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

RPEREBRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 June 2022
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Consolidated Statement of

HE-_Z-—F=A=+—HILFECAEBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

A Revenue 3(a) 2,881,942 2,646,469
SHERA Cost of sales (2,659,381) (2,318,873)
ER Gross profit 222,561 327,596
HpA Other revenue 4 62,156 93,785
Hofth i 255 58 Other net gain 4 14,107 6,136
HEBH Selling expenses (37,165) (34,511)
THER Administrative expenses (130,449) (115,526)
EAbEE  HEEMEHH  Impairment losses on other property, plant

HEER and equipment 10(d) (18,960) (34,310)
FAEEERRERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 10(d), 11 (30,312) (59,377)
BEMEMLEREIE Valuation losses on investment properties 10(a), 10(b) (1,730) (8,570)
R RSR Profit from operations 80,208 175,223
A A Finance costs 5(a) (32,404) (36,824)
BRBE A s F Profit before taxation 5 47,804 138,399
FTiSHi Income tax 6(a) (5,164) 15,218
AT RSB REMN Profit for the year attributable to equity

I B A shareholders of the Company 42,640 153,617
BREF Earnings per share 9
R Basic 32.91{licents  118.591llicents
E Diluted 32.911licents  118.591lli cents

The notes on pages 78 to 170 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in note 23(b).

FISE1T0EMNM B AMEHRETN—ZBH ©
FET AR R R s IR R A A% B A SR B S A A B 5
23(b) °
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-Z-—F=A=+—HILFECAEBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

70 ) A g IR SR A A SR B R A

AEEHMREKE

HE A REEH 7R3 iRm R E -

Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 42,640 153,617

Other comprehensive income for the year:

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss:

Hag o Bl (b FT B A B AY Exchange differences on translation of financial

MR MER =5 statements of subsidiaries in Mainland China 1,906 4,737
AAAEBERREEAFERE Total comprehensive income for the year

W 4AHE attributable to equity shareholders of

the Company 44,546 158,354

FE78E 170 EMMFEARMBHREN—35H ©  The notes on pages 78 to 170 form part of these financial

statements.
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At 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

D
SE MBI R

Consolidated Statement of Fi

FREBEE Non-current assets
EYZE Investment properties 10(a) 28,100 29,830
EAh 3 - HEIMER Other property, plant and equipment 10(a) 385,197 424,866
FREAE Right-of-use assets 11 1,078,744 1,110,609
1,492,041 1,565,305
R E R Lease receivables 609 2,768
S Goodwill 12 1,001 1,001
EftEeEe Rental deposits paid 68,797 72,737
RIERIBEE E Deferred tax assets 21(b) 5,336 3,935
1,567,784 1,645,746
RENEE Current assets
=S Inventories 14(a) 57,278 46,008
7 UK BiR TR RN H b fE UL 3R Trade and other receivables 15 144,664 99,764
HEhemEE Other financial assets 13 - 16,745
AJ U [o] AR B TE Current tax recoverable 21(a) 10,440 17,633
RITFERRIREF Bank deposits and cash and
BEEEY cash equivalents 16 557,102 622,143
769,484 802,293
REBAE Current liabilities
JE 1 BR ZROFN HL A FE A< 3K Trade and other payables 17 344,428 359,778
HEAE Lease liabilities 18 410,072 433,320
FEfT AR IE Current tax payable 21(a) 1 20
A Provisions 22 27,781 18,784
782,322 811,902
REBAEEE Net current liabilities (12,838) (9,609)
EEABERRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 1,554,946 1,636,137

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 73
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-ZZ-—F=A=1+—HA(ABBIIR)
At 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

kRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEGE Lease liabilities 18 776,158 785,222
EERRIEB E Deferred tax liabilities 21(b) 1,086 1,795
BWEEZE Rental deposits received 1,769 1,768
A Provisions 22 61,697 69,516
840,710 858,301
BEEFE NET ASSETS 714,236 777,836
EARNEE Capital and reserves 23
[N Share capital 129,553 129,533
i Reserves 584,683 648,303
iyt TOTAL EQUITY 714,236 777,836

gHenN -_T-_—&F5A=+H#&sa  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30

=

ZEH o June 2022.
ERE IS
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
#MITERE T B,
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer

FI8E 170 BB A GHREN —EB5 o The notes on pages 78 to 170 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of
BE-_ZT_—_F#=ZA=+—HIFE(ABEEIIR)

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Share
capital
Tt
$'000

B
Note

B
pii=t

Share
premium

T

RRRIERBRRES S
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

M

PE 5
&

Capital

Exchange
reserve

T AN
EEEY)
HihH#E
Land and
buildings
revaluation
reserve

R
EF

Retained
profits
Tt

R-BZEF At 1 April 2020
mA—H 129,533 54,832 6,687 (900) 527 530,127 720,806
BE-Z2=-—F§ Changes in equity for year
=A=+—-Hi ended 31 March 2021:
FENEZEE
REE A Profit for the year - - - - - 153,617 153,617
Hih 2 EK= Other comprehensive income - - - 4,737 - - 4,737
ANFEFZEWELEFE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 4,737 - 153,617 158,354
EFEBHEMRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - - (64,767) (64,767)
AEEEEIRMZE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (38,860) (38,860)
R S B AR Lapse and cancellation of share
options - - (1,297) - - 1,297 -
ARERSEEE AR Equity-settled share-based
RERNR S transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) - - 2,303 - - - 2303
R=ZB=—F At 31 March 2021
=A=+-—H 129,533 54,832 7,693 3,837 527 581,414 777,836
R-B=—F At 1 April 2021
mA—H 129,533 54,832 7,693 3,837 527 581,414 777,836
BE-®2-_=fF Changes in equity for year
=A=+—H1Lt ended 31 March 2022:
FENEZEE
RNEF i F Profit for the year - - - - - 42,640 42,640
Hib2max Other comprehensive income - - - 1,906 - - 1,906
NEFZ2EUZELAE  Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 1,906 - 42,640 44,546
BIREER#E AT 813677 Shares issued under share
f& 1 option scheme 20 356 (34) = - = 342
BITER Issue expense - (5) - - - - (5)
FEEBHENARE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (77,731 (77,731
AEEC SRS  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - - (32,388) (32,388)
KR AR Lapse of share options - - (800) - - 800 -
ARERSEE M AR Equity-settled share-based
BEBRNRS transactions 5(b), 23(c)(i) - - 1,636 - - - 1,636
R=-B==F At 31 March 2022
=A=t+-—H 129,553 55,183 8,495 5,743 527 514,735 714,236

F78E 170 AMMEBAMEIHERN—FD o

The notes on pages

statements.

78 to 170 form part of these financial

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z-—F=A=+—HILFECAEBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

/6

T
$'000

—E-—
2021
T
$'000

i

T
$'000

REEE Operating activities
BB AR A Profit before taxation 47,804 138,399
HEIEE Adjustments for:

Hib¥ns - #aBmE Depreciation for other property, 5(c),

e plant and equipment 10(a) 90,948 100,865
FREEENE Depreciation for right-of-use assets 5(c), 11 408,430 443,234
Hib - #esmmE Impairment losses on other property,

R EE 1R plant and equipment 10(d) 18,960 34,310
FREEEMRERE  Impairment losses on right-of-use assets  10(d),

1" 30,312 59,377
A& Finance costs 5@a) 32,404 36,824
FEHA Interest income 4 (3,295) (4,437)
BEiRREHRE S Provision for long service payments

%5/ (8E) made/(reversed) 22(a) 1,470 (1,668)
BEEMYE  #EF Netloss on disposal of other property,

FEHERFE plant and equipment 4 5,291 9,779
REMFEHESR Valuation losses on investment properties  10(b) 1,730 8,570
DNEREENARGA  Equity-settled share-based payment

BTN expenses 5(b) 1,635 2,303
HEBIERE Gain on lease modifications (6,804) (1,591)
Hitp Others - (6)

EEESBHAKLER Operating profit before changes
in working capital 628,885 825,959
BESESRE ! Changes in working capital:
&M, md (Increase)/decrease in inventories (11,270) 4,819
BEEERE (Increase)/decrease in rental deposits paid
(), md (129) 2,494
FEUBR X S EfbfEUEK  Increase in trade and other receivables
2 m (42,521) (7,116)
IR R MBI Decrease in trade and other payables
s (12,375) (39,640)
Bl ZEERD Decrease in rental deposits received - (342)
EBRRSARESEE  Provision for long service payments utilised  22(a) (2,145) (1,251)
EBREBKALEE Provision for reinstatement
costs utilised 22(b) (2,565) (3,709)
RETHELNERSE Cash generated from operations 557,880 781,214
B IFIE Interest received 3,542 4,701
BENEEMNERFE Net Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (60) (5,126)
REEHELN Net cash generated from
HEREE operating activities 561,362 780,789
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statemen

HEZZE-—F==+—HILFECAEBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2022 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

REED

BARMYIE - RN

Investing activities

Payment for purchase of other property,

| plant and equipment (76,483) (109,878)
BEEMWE - #2HM  Net proceeds from disposal of other
BEMEHIEFE property, plant and equipment 142 299
Hin &R EETHME  Proceeds from maturity of other
B financial assets 16,779 3,100
B={E &3 Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits with
RITEFORD, () more than three months to maturity 6,511 (6,511)
BRAERESNELRZTD Capital element of lease rentals receipt 2,160 1,524
EWRAERELHFSED  Interest element of lease rentals receipt 108 116
REZEHFMAMNELEE Net cash used in investing activities (50,783) (111,350)
WEEE Financing activities
*E}ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂg*l'%ﬂ?éﬁ%fﬁ Proceeds from shares issued under share
IECE N option scheme 23(0)(i) 342 =
’?‘ﬁﬁxfﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’\] ZF  Expensesincurred in connection with
the issue of shares (5) -
ERE Dividends paid 23(b)  (110,119) (103,627)
ENEE fﬁﬁﬁ’]é$jﬁﬁ Capital element of lease rentals paid 16(b)  (427,548) (424,974)
ENEERELMFEZLD  Interest element of lease rentals paid 16(b) (32,404) (36,824)
BMETHFRAMNELEE Net cash used in financing activities (569,734) (565,425)
ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%{“% Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
W),/ N EEE cash equivalents (59,155) 104,014
REB—BWELH Cash and cash equivalents
HEZEY at 1 April 615,632 511,047
IIEERBE NS E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 625 571
R=A=+—HMEEH Cash and cash equivalents
REZEY at 31 March 16 557,102 615,632

FISE 170 EMHI B A HRE A

— 8% -

The notes on pages 78 to 170 form part of these financial
statements.

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIEB AR TRIHABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FEETHE
(a) B EH

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

/8

AHMBRRERRBREL SN GMHE
R A B R E BT IS £
(tmBEESMEERNER(EEY
RS EA) (BAEGFERD M2
B) BEEAREFTRAUMEFE(AA
R P1) B AR TE R o NP 15 R A B
NEBEMARIMERAR (THR
Frl) & L AR EHRA D) &yE
AWERTE - ATEARAREH B
RE (G ARE D RBNEZERSR
B ©

BREGMAGRN T ETHIIME
BRI EEMBREED ) FLE
AIEASRBEEMN ST HRRAEER
KA HEFRA - ERAKBE AR
#E A 56 R RIS LT MR ERTH
REAFTSIBUE AT M AR 25T ME
MEFBRRES CRAPHHRERA
Bk - BRAEREIIRHEE 1) °

(b) A F R AV AR B E

HE_T_—_F=A=t+—HIFE
MERA M RZREAEE -

R-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—H' K&
7 7% E) & E 42 1B A 769,484,000 7T
— & — — 4 :802,293,0007T ) *
mE A& E A782,322,000T( =
=~ — £ :811,902,0007T ) - A I -
REE S RE) B (E)F(E 12,838,000
(== = — 4 :9,609,0007C )" *
EHRAEERRTHEET A
410,072,000t HEAFB (=T = —
£F 1 433,320,0007T) °

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022 comprise the Group.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s total current assets were
$769,484,000 (2021: $802,293,000) and total current
liabilities were $782,322,000 (2021: $811,902,000). As a
result, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
$12,838,000 (2021: $9,609,000) mainly due to lease
liabilities of $410,072,000 (2021: $433,320,000)
recognised under current liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRGAEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEEREER 2
(b) BA TS ER R AVARBLEZE (48)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

Despite the net current liabilities as at 31 March 2022, the
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
$557,102,000 (2021: $622,143,000) on the same day and
the Group reported a profit before taxation of $47,804,000
(2021: $138,399,000) and recorded net cash generated
from operating activities of $561,362,000 (2021:
$780,789,000) during the year ended 31 March 2022.
Furthermore, based on the cash flow projection prepared
by management which covers a period of not less than
twelve months from 31 March 2022, the directors are of
the opinion that anticipated cash flows generated from the
Group's operations can strengthen the Group’s financial
position and enable the Group to have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the coming twelve months from 31 March 2022.
Accordingly, the Group's consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

BER_E-_—_F=ZA=+—B87
ERBEEFEE BEAEENZHA
MBPTERMBEMREEEY
£557,102,000c( = & = — &
622,143,0007C ) A A& B E == =
—HEZ A=+ — B IEYIREBR AT
i A 247,804,000 ( =& — — ¢
138,399,0007T) * HEX B L RS E
A MR & F 5 A561,362,0000( =&
——%F :780,789,0007T) ° B+ 1BIE
EREREMREE T -__F=A
—t+—HRT PR+ =@ ABHEAIR
SRETEN  BEERE ~NEBELEE
EMBEHRERERE—TREELSE
BB IWEAEBENTD
BITE-_ZE-_—_F=A=+—HEX
R+—EARNHNPABEE - ALt - A%
ESEYERRIEFECEREERR -

BRI XAE RS BE S G AIN
REARERRETAELKAER

e

EEERERUENTACEBMBMEE
AW BHRERESEL @ H SRR
R AREE - BFE WAMXIH
H) ¥ 5 BRI A B B RO H B - A A
RaR o ELE AT AR RREREN
ERBRNEEEAERERBARSE

BENZEAMERELN  BE

BXT B B AR B H A R E RN
SHMEEEA BAMKEERATELDH
B ey 2 - BERARATREA BRI G &

B8R -

B E S T E S R AR B
RE - MR ATNETRAREE
X—HH EPEFeaXHRAE
R MRETHERMMAKIEREE
FE - AEFELEET R AR R

IR o

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as
otherwise stated in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

/9
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - TRBEEEZIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EERHBE @)
(b) BT S OB RLEL S (45)

FHEEBRERMA(ERAMBHREE
ADEAELE A B HRREEATE
R HIET - AR EZO AR BN EE
REMOFRAR - BFIRHIRE2

EHEENET
BEBSHAEEM TETEEIN
<<%f/%ﬂ7ﬁ&¥&¢/§5”> BELEEFIRASE
BRASETERE R ER - HBEEEE
WARBASERESE RE kR H
FERMBRRAN T RNEELEERTE -

ARER BB R R A E A2 & AR
R R AR AR Al S i

(d) Fit B X &)

MBARREIXASEZGNER -
EAKRER2EEREBMAER
EEmBrERIEILFR A ZEH 0O
¥ BAENEBREREINENM
wEE%i@i&B% AR EEHZE

cHEFGASERLHEA LlED
H% CEER(REEMEMT A
) BERER

KRB RBANKRERENFEE
T?E%‘J%%JtééEIE%/\:'EMM&EEEPE\H
A8 - SERBERNGER  XFHME
ERE WEREEANBRZMELDN
EARER LGN SERHREAVH
WARF 2B - KBRS M3
HASHRBERNEE T ERRER K
mARE - EHEEER FEEA/XE RS
RE IR ERER D

EARRBHBRRIEAR - R E
E’J&ét&ﬁﬁi$ﬂ£ﬂﬁ[§ﬁ§(”ﬁﬁw
= 10)ii) B HIER o

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(continued)

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.

(c) Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-
group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(j)iii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRGAEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHEBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e)HE (e) Goodwill

P 2 4 (i) R 3R (ii) RO B0 ER - Goodwill represents the excess of:

() FMEERENAABEREAEEIA
ERARWET BRAE DN D A2 (E

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously

BRYEA

(i) WUEET A BRI EEMBERKE

BEtENAAEEFE -

BHARBROE - BHNBENEE

BT ERSRERENKES -

BERRKARE R BEBRRD
e bEAHELANBEEIRER
HIRDE B A Ot 1 R R 7 Y & (3
ReERETReEHETAER
¥ B EBFEZRMERNR (2R E()

(iii))

(f) HEBMEREFIRE

AEBHBRMNEBRARIREZINNE
RS EFR BN HERHINNT -

HREBIESESFRE  AKER
EHBEHEREE HER EILE
RZEARE - WERAAEBENER

DIXAAETNER

BREDIRELIINIIRE

AEEBERG IS RERNTE

R

held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(j)iii)).

(f) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries are set out
below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into the following measurement category:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method (see note 1(t)(ii)).

- WHREBEREEEWEREAY XS
MABMEENELRESREMSF
A AZIREUBERKAE - &
BEENBRARBERAERLET
& (2B 10G) °
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note

1¢0)(ii).

In the comparative period, when the Group held a property
interest under an operating lease and used the property to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
Group could elect on a property-by-property basis to
classify and account for such interest as an investment
property. Any such property interest which had been
classified as an investment property was accounted for as if
it were held under a finance lease (see note 1(i)), and the
same accounting policies were applied to that interest as
were applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases. Lease payments were accounted for as
described in note 1(i).

(h) Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 1(j)(iii)):

— right-of-use assets arising from leases over freehold or
leasehold properties where the Group is not the
registered owner of the property interest;

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1(i)); and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

The cost of self-constructed items of other property, plant
and equipment includes the initial estimate, where relevant
of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.



B ISR AR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRGAEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FREBE @)

(h) H 2 - IR MRE (&)
WENEEREMBYE  BEMKREA
BAEAMNBRNEEMFRIEFE
HERAREASB ANEEET 1
RESRE A ERETER -

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Hi%k  HBENREBHENTER
PAE #R0RFE A TS AT AT A AR A 0 85
HEHARBE(SHERGEFERAED

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
other property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over

B))FE - their estimated useful lives as follows:

- MAELTHF 30-504F - Leasehold land and 30-50 years
BRE W buildings situated thereon
BEY

- BEEAX m PR E — Other properties held for ~ The remaining term of
Hot own use the tenancy leases

- BEERAMEE wWHEEH - Ownership interests in The remaining term of
TR RS leasehold land held for the tenancy leases

own use

- THEMmHE ) R TE & H - Leasehold improvements  The remaining term of
WRETIRE the tenancy leases

- RAM ) R 1H & HA - Air-conditioning plant The remaining term of

the tenancy leases

e FF10%-33% — Furniture and equipment  10%-33% per annum

- "= BE15% — Motor vehicles 15% per annum

- BES BF25% — Computer systems 25% per annum

- Hfp BF10% - Others 10% per annum

AEEesEEHEENT BHRM

BE(E) -

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,

are reviewed annually.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

(i) As a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less, for the Group are primarily retail stores. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are
not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.



B RS ERAR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESEER - BRGAEBTIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FEEHEEK &)
() HEEE (&)
(i) fEBFEBEA (&)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Leased assets (continued)

(i) As a lessee (continued)
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The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 1(h) and 1(j)iii)), except for right-of-use assets
that meet the definition of investment property are
carried at fair value in accordance with note 1(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)
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When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if
it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

1¢0)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group applies the exemption
described in note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies the
sub-lease as an operating lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following item:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
— lease receivables

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rate where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other
receivables: effective interest rate determined at
initial recognition or an approximation thereof;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,
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other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
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(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Credit losses from trade and other receivables,

other financial assets carried at amortised cost and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
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Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm'’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the issuance
of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the amount carried in “trade and
other payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation).

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
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(continued)

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the
risk of default of the specified debtor since the issuance
of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless
the risk that the specified debtor will default has
increased significantly since the guarantee is issued, in
which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The same
definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note 1(j)(i)

apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— other property, plant and equipment;

— right-of-use assets (other than property carried at
revalued amounts);

-~ goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a
pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see note 1(j)(iii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Inventories

0)

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, in the process of production for such
sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed
in the production process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note

1G)0).
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1 FEGFHBEK &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) & EEF (m)Interest-bearing borrowings
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Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(j)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(o) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1()).

For a single contract with the customer, a net contract
liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net
basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest accrued
under the effective interest method (see note 1(v)).

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL
in accordance with the policy in note 1(j)(i).
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1 FEEHEEK &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() EERF (q) Employee benefits
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Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company'’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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1 EEEEE 2 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) FRB%L (&) (r) Income tax (continued)
THAECHEBEEERBENER The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
ZB2RFANUTARBOBIINMER - AA] and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
ERE T EESTMANEE: o2 goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
et NEREINEESXBBENYEG recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither

R NBLEESFH—ZD AN accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
AR ERHBAR (NEBEHER a business combination), and temporary differences relating
R 2N & & 7] DA 28 1 6 B /9 B R to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
i B 1 7] 78 R &9 1§ 2k A K Al B ¥ [0 A of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
Tir=8 BRI EHNER AR R reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
RIRA] eSS R E R E=R) - reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of

deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

EREMERBEWE () T8 & 5T R Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
URARBEARE  BRIEZSHET in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
FUFETRBEERAFTAE B 1(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
PBEZEMERBRIDNE BN RS using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets
FrfE)E#E - MIEMmBAHEEE - TA at their carrying value at the reporting date unless the
ERRELEHBSERE BILBIUR property is depreciable and is held within a business model
HeEHEZSEERBRAMNBE X whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
o EFMBEEMIBERT  ERRELER economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
R EENHEERESEANTEL rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
BEHRAAEEAR  BEBEDHITHNR deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected
ELHAREL LERATHRESGE - B manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
ERIBEERB B IRGTHE - of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

AREFSNREHRAEHELEHRBE The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
ENFEESE MRAEEBHTH the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
Al BEE TS B A FE Bl om A LA I F0 #E 8 extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
BRERNDS  ZEEREEAENER profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
cHEEeHAK BERNEHEET be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
ESRANER A EEREES that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
#o o be available.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Revenue and other income
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Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use
by others of the Group's assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the
right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to
customers. Revenue is after deduction of any sale
discounts.

(i) Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an
accrual basis.

(v) Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while
that for subsidiaries which operate in Mainland China is
Renminbi. The presentation currency of the Group is Hong
Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
Company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Statement of financial position
items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 FESHBE 5
(v) fEERA

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Borrowing costs

HYE BEXEEFERERT A
MEARER S HENEEAEN
BEOEERAR  AIFTAERERZE
ERAN -0 EEERARE
A HRSIS o

BREEBEENAN—HoMEEK
AHEBEELRX  BEKAELEM
EEERARERARAFEEMLA
WEGTHEETHERBENME - &
FEEREERARERELHEERN
VANBRE D EFETIED L TX
B (EERAEEEEFEHFLEEANL -

(w) A Bt

() MBAT AL BZA+HZAL
HT IR A AR T

() #EHIKARERAEE :
(i) HAEEBEATED 3

(i) RAEEHAEE T RFNEH
HEEAR -

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(W) Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

RPGEEBABRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(W) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

(vii)A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(vii)The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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1 FESHEBE &) 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or
provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Sources of estimation uncertainty

Significant sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that right-of-use assets and other property,
plant and equipment may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the
conclusion of whether an indication of impairment exists and
revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which would affect
profit or loss in future years.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 AR SZEBIR S 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(a) Bt A (a) Revenue
REBNFEEBELEREENY The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast
ERE - WABEETEZR MM food restaurants and property investments. Revenue
MAEEEENRESKA  TI1EE represents the sales value of food and beverages sold to
BN EMEEN - I 2R E customers and rental income and excludes value added tax
EPH - WA ITAT - or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts. An analysis of revenue is as follows:

H—EHAHREL IR MmEE Sale of food and beverages at a point in time 2,879,467 2,641,319
mERE Property rental 2,475 5,150
2,881,942 2,646,469
BEAEE T EBEBEHEMEREFT Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are
U disclosed below:
(b) B EP R = (b) Segment reporting
AEEFAMED S (BEEEERF The Group manages its businesses by two divisions, namely
B A EEE) REIEER - WiIRRi= Hong Kong restaurants and Mainland China restaurants,
R=EoEMmED I - AEBDEE which are organised by geographical location. In a manner
TUTRERES  FEEHST N consistent with the way in which information is reported
HAEEESETHEEABRAL internally to the Group’s most senior executive
WEFIEER (AHEETERSR management for the purposes of resource allocation and
RRBAGE)OHFR - REESRE performance assessment, the Group has identified the
R AR IATHRE D ZBMmETTA 6 following two reportable segments. No operating segments
STEREE SIS - have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.
- BAZEE: gl HBETBELE - Hong Kong restaurants: this segment operates
B - restaurants in Hong Kong.
- HEABEE: EESHTEFRA - Mainland China restaurants: this segment operates
AR A RS o restaurants in Mainland China.
EMEBSBAEEN TN EERE Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
WEMEME  WEBSARER - investment properties and include corporate expenses.
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3 IKARSE®RE (&)
(b) 2 EpR & (47)
() DEpEE

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results
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For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results of each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit
before taxation. Items not specifically attributable to
individual segments are not allocated to the reportable
segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-
segment revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost,
labour cost, rent and rates and depreciation charged on
other property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets). The inter-segment transactions were conducted
on normal commercial terms and were priced with
reference to prevailing market prices and in the ordinary
course of business.

Segment assets information is not reported to or used
by the Group’s most senior executive management.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 WARDE®E 2
(b) B EHE (&)
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results (continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is set out below.

BE hER ity

Hong Kong
restaurants

T fF
2022
T
$'000

REINBEFH  Revenue from external
Wiz customers

Mainland China Other

restaurants segments
B —FE--F —FE--F —FT--F —T--F —E-_F
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2,733,685 2,525542 145782 115777 2,475 5,150 2,881,942 2,646,469
REEMHIE  Inter-segment revenue
BA - - - - 393 1,804 393 1,804
HEDWWA  Reportable segment revenue 2,733,685 2,525,542 145782 115,777 2,868 6,954 2,882,335 2,648,273
{ED WA,/ Reportable segment
(E#8) profit/(loss) 108532 255760  (15,690)  (19,917) 5,964 4813 98,806 240,656
FEBA Interest income 3,130 4,288 57 33 108 116 3,295 4,437
FSER Interest expense (29,844)  (34,817) (2,560) (2,007) - - (32404 (36,824)
nE Depreciation (471,673)  (519,003)  (26,783)  (24,175) (922) (921)  (499,378)  (544,099)
Hfioh% - Impairment losses on other
e MRE property, plant and
MR EER equipment (15385)  (28,723) (3,575) (5,587) - - (18960)  (34,310)
BEEEES  Impairment losses on
REER right-of-use assets (25333) (48538 (4979  (10,839) - - (30312 (59377)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 MARSBEE (&) 3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) 7 EBERE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) &2 SPEFE R (ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

Y Al Profit
B 75 AT R 25 43 2B V4 Reportable segment profit before
taxation 98,806 240,656

REYELERRE Valuation losses on investment properties (1,730) (8,570)
Hib Y - EEMBRED Impairment losses on other property,

REEE plant and equipment (18,960) (34,310)
FREEENREEE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets (30,312) (59,377)
4RE R AT R A Consolidated profit before taxation 47,804 138,399

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED k 1 09




BATS IR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BrIER B » BRI ABETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3 WARZEBEE (&)
(b) 7 &R = ()
(iiii) b 32 B ) (iii) Geographic information

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
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The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group’s investment
properties, other property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and goodwill (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on
the physical location of the assets in the case of
investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, and the location of
the operation to which they are allocated in the case of
goodwill.

KB N P EI A HEEFEMBEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—=—— —E= -4 — = —EF -4
2022 2021 2022 2021
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BE Hong Kong
(FEf ) (place of domicile) 2,733,848 2,527,330 1,345,237 1,442,495
ESRElp:if Mainland China 148,094 119,139 147,805 123,811
2,881,942 2,646,469 1,493,042 1,566,306
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

4 R A ik 2R HE

4 OTHER REVENUE AND NET GAIN

Heaplg A Other revenue

FEMA Interest income 3,295 4,437

AT BN (MI5E) Government grants (note) 58,861 89,348
62,156 93,785

Hth s F 58 Other net gain

BEERMYZE - SR E

Net loss on disposal of other property,

BB R %8 plant and equipment (5,291) (9,779)
FE H UG %5358 Net foreign exchange gain 2,064 2,038
BENTEEER Electric and gas range incentives 5,735 5,166
S HREETE iR Profit on sale of redemption gifts 585 766
HAh A A0 B D Write-back of other payables 1,901 1,702
HEEEKE Gain on lease modifications 6,804 1,591
Hi Others 2,309 4,652

14,107 6,136
MizE : FEREABEFIITHR L ZEHMELZES R Note: This mainly represented subsidies approved by the Finance Committee
BERYERRNEBTEIHENRB) - AT of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
EHAEAR RS RIE S BEEERES - Region for Food Licence Holders Subsidy Scheme to cope with the

operating pressure caused by the novel coronavirus epidemic.

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED k 1 1 1
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5 FRiRAIEF 5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BE RS FE R (GEA) Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) A& R A (a) Finance costs
HEARNEER Interest expense on lease liabilities
(K 16(b)) (note 16(b)) 32,404 36,824
(b) ETAA (b) Staff costs
FEHFGRIRET Bl 5K Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 46,883 43,490
AR A E B AR D 7 Equity-settled share-based payment
HEE X expenses 1,636 2,303
e TEMEAREF (M) Salaries, wages and other benefits (note) 955,974 688,496
1,004,493 734,289
e BE=—_T=-—F=A=+—H ' HEBEE Note: The item during the year ended 31 March 2021 was net of employment
HBR BB R RIITH R BT R 5L 3£ 5T 81w AL support scheme subsidies from HKSAR Government of $183,227,000
183,227,0007C (ZE==4 : TJr) ° (2022: $Nil).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other items

Cost of inventories (note (i)
Depreciation charge
— Other property, plant and equipment
— Right-of-use assets
Auditor’s remuneration
— Audit services
— Tax services
— Other services
Expense relating to short-term leases
Variable lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease liabilities
Building management fee
Rentals receivable
— Investment properties,
less direct outgoings of $7,000
(2021: $9,000)
— Other operating sub-leases
Electricity, water and gas
Logistic expense
Repair and maintenance
Sanitation
Cost of subsequent replacement of
cutlery and utensils

737,734

90,948
408,430

3,853
184
240

6,823

5,507
50,909

(2,305)
(163)
154,570
64,567
40,015
53,309

10,727

657,543

100,865
443,234

3,853
183
40
4,225

3,430
50,386

(3,354)
(1,787)
141,305
57,586
36,562
52,388

9,844

MEREQ) - FERARERMKA

Note (i): The cost of inventories represents food costs.

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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6 REESRMTHMERN 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

() FEBERATHBIES

114

REABLIE - BARFEHER

loss represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

REF A Provision for the year 7,307 79
DEEEEECGBF), /T2 (Over)/under-provision in
respect of prior years (33) 857
EFERE (FI5E21(b)) Deferred tax (note 21(b))
TR EEMNEEM Origination and reversal of temporary
2 [ differences (2,110) (16,154)
5,164 (15,218)

—E- /SR _FENBERNEF
Bt R R A 4R T A i 5t B RT B
A165%(—FE - /- T - —4F:
16.5%) MRt E - EAREE K — ]
P /B8 2 145 6 7 AR 1 )45 B4 B3 1 Y
EERSN o

MZMNBARME BRSO E
2008 TTHIF R A8.25% M T HYE
AR FNFHE516.5%  RIEFEBH
MAEH - AHBAR T /T
—FERBFEHIRBREEETE -

HRAEETREAMERE—_FT - —
FN_T_—FHEUBER A%
EYERZAENTEARKNE
(TR B )) MR PSR -

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2021/2022 is
calculated at 16.5% (2020/2021: 16.5%) of the estimated
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered profits tax rate regime.

For this subsidiary, the first $2.0 million of assessable
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax for this subsidiary was calculated at the same
basis in 2020/2021.

No provision has been made for PRC corporate income tax
for 2022 and 2021, as the Group’s Mainland China
operations sustained a loss for taxation purpose.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6 REESRMTHRERN &) 6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(b) BiEXZH, (%) BEFTHEFIRE
B RETE AR -

R 35 A& 7 Profit before taxation 47,804 138,399
LAF 15 556 7 4% 1) Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated
ZEZ—F : FISHRAE) at two-tiered profit tax regime (2021:
TENERRTANGEH two-tiered profit tax regime) 7,722 22,671
ER—HBEEREENHEART  Effect of different tax rate of
FRATRF RN L a subsidiary operating in
another tax jurisdiction (2,826) (4,894)
AR X B I & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,183 1,721
BARKANBIETE Tax effect of non-taxable income (10,949) (46,607)
RERAMEARERNAEINEER  Tax effect of unused tax losses
HIER & not recognised 8,042 11,005
RNEEBEEAZBIHARERD Tax effect of previously unrecognised tax
AENBIEEENT IR & losses utilised this year (1,009) (5)
AERNEMEREZENHBETE  Tax effect of other temporary differences
not recognised 34 34
A FEEE BRI, TR (Over)/under-provision in respect of prior
years (33) 857
BRBIERS (%) Actual tax expense/(credit) 5,164 (15,218)

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7 ESil&

7

RIRFBCR BERB ) 56 383(1) 16 B 5 2 &6
(BRI (BREEFENDER) RODIIRNE

EMewT ¢

ESHE

Directors’
fee

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

e RE VARG A7 7= RIRGHE
MEYH e VIEEAL EWHXN R
Salaries
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary  Share-based scheme

in kind bonus payments contributions
(PHEE (i)
(Note (i)
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

HITES Executive Directors
BRGLE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,522 593 - - 7,285
BEALE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 1,987 593 514 18 3,262
itk vE Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,234 297 150 18 2,849
FE@ME Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,261 297 150 18 2,876
B BT Independent

S Non-executive

Directors

RE‘@FEE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
BREEF A Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
2IREET Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - _ _ 170
BRRGE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

GEIO) (note (iii)) 75 - - - _ 75
FiRE kA Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - _ 240
BlefEit Mr Yip Cheuk Tak

(FI5E(v)) (note (iv)) 50 - - - _ 50

1,525 13,004 1,780 814 54 17,177
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7 EEMl& #)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

ik

Directors’
fee

e E2H
MEMF e
Salaries
allowances
and benefits
in kind

T
$'000

HETEL

Discretionary
bonus

T
$'000

VAR 75
ERE S

Share-based
payments
(PHEE())
(Note (i)
T

$'000

HEZ/N

AR

Retirement
scheme
contributions

T
$'000

HiTES Executive Directors
ERGEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 170 6,541 374 - - 7,085
EEASLE Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis 150 1,608 374 534 18 2,684
Ban/) A Ms Mak Yee Mei 150 2,263 187 147 18 2,765
FEH/ME Ms Peggy Lee 150 2,234 187 150 18 2,739
FHITES Non-executive
Director

BRAERK L& Mr Chan Chee Shing

GEI0) (note (i) 75 645 - _ _ 720
B IEHIT Independent Non-

BES executive Directors
REBAE Mr Ng Chi Keung 180 - - - - 180
BREFRE Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 190 - - - - 190
EEEL Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 170 - - - - 170
BRREE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 170 = - - - 170
FIRERE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 240 - - - - 240

1,645 13,291 1,122 831 54 16,943

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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7 EEME (2

FEREQ) -

A 3 G -

B (i)

B 5 Giv) -

BAIR(D BERE R (TR IFR IR 2 FE0M
BT BIE T 2 0B K 1421 0 -
Y 1B (L R AR R 2 1(Q)) A 31
BRIARG BERHZ S HAREGHEK
HEE - MRKKEE - BOEBESE
I T AL T T4 DA B0
SRR -

BLEEMNENFE (BREEE T HED
TEGFMBB)BREFGRETB
et 8] — S FNHT 20 -

BREXEER-_"TE_ZEFMNA—HALR
RIATESHATAIERNITES - REMKE
AERZZEZTF+A—BBEARIFERR
TESE -

BRREERN TS —FNAANBEER
RAVBIIFAITESR
BleErERN S —F+_A—HEZ

ERARBBILIFATES -

8 mEMeAL

ERfME&EEHOALH T

—_=

—F A REF BRANHESHBH
REE7 o A —(L (ZFE=Z—%F : —{I)
ATHBS @M T

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Note (i) :

Note (ii) :

Note (iii):

Note (iv):

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the
Group's accounting policies for share-based payment transactions as
set out in note 1(qg)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where
grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 20.

Mr Chan Chee Shing was re-designated from Executive Director to
Non-executive Director of the Company on 1 April 2020. Mr Chan
Chee Shing has resigned as a Non-executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 October 2020.

Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo retired as Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company on 9 September 2021.

Mr Yip Cheuk Tak was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2021.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the

five individuals with the highest emoluments, four

individuals (2021: four individuals) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other one individual (2021: one
individual) are as follows:

HEMEMBE Salaries and other emoluments 1,491 1,755
PARS 9 A BB HY ST A+t Share-based payments 100 98
RIRETEIHR Retirement scheme contributions 18 18

1,609 1,871
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8 mEM&AL &) 8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
—M (2B —F: —f)HEeEaATH The emoluments of one individual (2021: one individual) with
B LA T & E A the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
T
2022
N
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
$1,500,001 — $2,000,000 1 1
9 BRRERF 9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) BREREF (a) Basic earnings per share
BRERBINREZBRARNF ERER The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
[I% B8 FE 1 %5 71 42,640,000 7T (= F = — profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
£ :153,617,00070 ) © N K E @AW Company of $42,640,000 (2021: $153,617,000) and the
hnE 15 129,550,000 (=& = — weighted average number of ordinary shares of
£ ¢ 129,533,000/%) 5t & - FEWAT ¢ 129,550,000 shares (2021: 129,533,000 shares) in issue

during the year, calculated as follows:

TmA R a8 Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
T
2022
EEZ = R
Number of Number of
shares shares
TR F i
‘000 ‘000
R A—BHE 3T R Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 129,533 129,533
BITEERENZE Effect of share options exercised 17 -
R=A=+—Hr @& nE Weighted average number of
Eih gk ordinary shares at 31 March 129,550 129,533
(b) BREERF (b) Diluted earnings per share
IR RARR B I A RITE 8B Basic earnings per share are the same as diluted earning
BERy  BUtERERNRNETAR per share for both years as the Company has no potential
S RANER - dilutive shares outstanding for both years.

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 1 9
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108 ETME - Hth'hE RS MEHH 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RiEg L1 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(a) (a)
HELH  HENE
Gilfy) HEIHE Hin & NGt REMZ
Leasehold
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total properties
T T T T T
$'000 $'000
BAGMGE Cost or valuation:
RZZEZZTFNA—-A At 1 April 2020 98,274 369,676 754,488 1,222,438 38,400 1,260,838
L Exchange adjustments 521 2,219 2,659 5,399 - 5,399
2E Additions - 33,888 59,569 93,457 - 93,457
HE Disposals - (36,480) (53,411) (89,891) - (89,891)
BNOEERREAE Reclassification to right-of-use
assets - (420) - (420) - (420)
SftEE Loss on revaluation
(PFE10(0)) (note 10(b)) - - - - (8,570) (8,570)
RZFZ—F=FA=+—H At31March 2021 98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 29,830 1,260,813
R : Representing:
5% Cost 98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 - 1,230,983
fE-—F=—F Valuation - 2021 - - - - 29,830 29,830
98,795 368,383 763,305 1,230,983 29,830 1,260,813
ST EARE - Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZZE-ZFRA—H At 1 April 2020 56,955 245,211 445,561 747,727 - 747,727
fE i AR Exchange adjustments 502 1,592 1,354 3,448 = 3,448
AEEHH Charge for the year 2,227 41388 57,250 100,865 = 100,865
mEEE (FEE100) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 1,151 8,606 24,553 34,310 = 34,310
&R Written back on disposal = (36,360) (43,453) (79,813) = (79,813)
BNHEEFEAEEE  Reclassification to right-of-use
assets - (420) - (420) - (420)
RZTZ—5=RA=1+—H At31March2021 60,835 260,017 485,265 806,117 - 806,117
BRE R E Net book value:
RZZZ—F=A=F—H At31March2021 37,960 108,866 278,040 424,866 29,830 454,696
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10\ BWE - Ktk - WBRIXE
RERLW &)

(@) (&)

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(a) (continued)

ﬁ%%%
MR WETRE HwEE REME
Leasehol
land and Leasehold Other Investment
buildings improvements assets Sub-total properties
Tt T Fr T T
$'000 $'000
BAfE Cost or valuation:
RZZZ—FEA—H At 1 April 2021 98,795 368,883 763,305 1,230,983 29,830 1,260,813
[ 5% % Exchange adjustments 275 1,451 1,589 3315 - 3,315
BE Additions - 25,361 49,204 74,565 - 74,565
HE Disposals - (16,663) (30,402) (47,065) - (47,065)
BNHEEFEAEEE  Reclassification to right-of-use
assets - (790) - (790) - (790)
BftEE Loss on revaluation
(HHEE10(6)) (note 10(b)) - - - - (1,730) (1,730)
RZFZZF=A=+—H At31March2022 99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 28,100 1,289,108
Rk Representing:
A Cost 99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 - 1,261,008
HE-ZT--F Valuation - 2022 - - - - 28,100 28,100
99,070 378,242 783,696 1,261,008 28,100 1,289,108
Rt EARE : Accumulated depreciation
and impairment:
RZE-—FpmA—H At 1 April 2021 60,835 260,017 485,265 806,117 - 806,117
X A% Exchange adjustments 266 1,048 894 2,208 - 2,208
AEEH Charge for the year 2,193 35,503 53,252 90,948 - 90,948
wEEE (FEE100) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 812 4118 14,030 18,960 - 18,960
HE R R Written back on disposal - (15,918) (25,714) (41,632) - (41,632)
BNHEEFREAE Redlassification to right-of-use
assets - (790) - (790) - (790)
RZFZZF=A=1+—H At31March2022 64,106 283,978 527,727 875,811 - 875,811
BRME A Net book value:
RZZEZZF=A=+—H At31March 2022 34,964 94,264 255,969 385,197 28,100 413,297

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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108 ETME - Hth'hE RS MEHH 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

RESLTH 2) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(a) (&) (a) (continued)
REEYERRKEENDITAT - The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the

Group is as follows:

HELHAEEY BRAK) Leasehold land and buildings, at cost

EEBERNTEESE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 71,090 71,090

ERBEINNTEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 27,980 27,705
99,070 98,795

BREWE (REHE) Investment properties, at valuation

EEBSFIINFEREE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 28,100 29,830
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10\ BWE - Ktk - WBRIXE
RERLH (2

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND

(continued)

(L) MEN A ARBEE
(i) 2REERBR

AEERNHERIREEE LM
ENMERAREE - ZFWECH
MNERFBRELEANDE 13RI
AEEFAEIMREN=ZAIAE
BER AEE2RUATHEESE
PR ReE AERN A BRIZEENE
2l KMEEAABEAEHE
FrFESR BB AR -

- FERMBE: REAE—E
BB AE(BIHREEXRER
FFEAHEERMISNREH
BRE) KFERAEE-

- FEMMGE: - ERE-_EBR
BABEAIREF - ERNAE
KRBANE) UREEATAH
RBWABRAELIABE T
B R f A (B 2 8 R R T IS B
EEBAE

- ESEGMEE: RAEATA
BRE A BRI B AR HE -

FIEREYMECN T - —_FMN—
T-_—F=ZA=+—REFTEH-
EETERBIAERMERET —F
BEEETEBERARMET %8
EMTHEIHBRAIEEEAR
HATE AR E YR T B A LR
FIAEHRBEMNER ~EEEEE
BRI S MET e RS AR ETH
BERBEMER -

RZBZZFM=ZFT-_—F=A=
+—B  AEBFAREDEHIN
M BE=ZRABERBHRE -

(b) Fair value measurement of properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of the Group's investment properties
measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis are categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

All investment properties were revalued at 31 March
2022 and 2021 by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who has staff with recognised
professional qualifications and relevant experience in
the location and category of investment properties
being revalued. The Group’s management has
discussion with the surveyors on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is
performed at the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, all of the Group’s

investment properties fall into Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as described above.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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108 ETME - Hth'hE RS MEHH 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REELH =) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)
(L) IER A REBESTE (&) (b) Fair value measurement of properties (continued)
(i) E=ZERAABEFTENER (ii) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
D3 it B BERE RAIBIRBAE
Location of properties Valuation techniques Unobservable input
o B Ayt — 7 HELEBE EEYME & TSR (20%) & 0%
(#7:&),%(E (ZZ2=—F : (19%)Z(7%))
Mainland China — Direct comparison (Discount)/premium on (20%) to 0%
Commercial properties approach quality of the buildings (2021: (19%) to (7%))
R EAMEIRENEN AR E The fair values of investment properties located in
B REREELBEEE  EF Mainland China are determined by using direct
E2ERALYENTE  WiR2E comparison approach with reference to the market
RS MEEYE S 0 E E D price of comparable properties and adjusted for
B -RaiTEnREVESF/ER building quality and timing of the reference
EOQRBEFTEEE - transactions. Higher discount for investment properties

will result in a lower fair value measurement.

B A B A IR B Y ERF The movement of these investment properties in
WEVEBHAT Mainland China during the year is as follows:
Fr
$'000
RZZEZZTFMA—AH At 1 April 2020 38,400
HEBE Valuation losses (8,570)
R-E-_—F=HA=+—H At 31 March 2021 29,830
R-ZBE-_—FmMA—H At 1 April 2021 29,830
HEEE Valuation losses (1,730)
KRB —_F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022 28,100
(c) Kb EEBFEEM - &E 2R HK -9 (c) Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
B BREARRVABENTIXEA plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial
KEsm o purchases of cutlery and utensils.
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108 TME - HthE - BBRE
RERLH (2

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(EAFERN AEEERENREE (d)During the year, the Group’s management identified

LEBETIEARENGEN  BEAT
BEREBEERFBERE WHEETE
LEZEFEAEEENREMYE .
B R A IR D B RIEE
E FREEFTABREENREM
ME BENZENE@LSED
B 1E30,312,000t( =T = — % :
59,377,000 7T ) X 18,960,000 ¢t ( = =
— — % :34,310,0007T) ° RIEAEE
e CTHEEENREEAERRE
1% B & 5T ] W Bl £ %8 & 26,607,000 7T
(CZE-—F: —+=-HEENLHEA
25,578,0007C) ° BR UL BASN - FIBE S
FREEENREMYE  #BESFR
HEHARESERE(ZE=—F : F
BREBFTHEEEAREMYE - #
AR A O] UL B S BEE(K) - AT R [E
BEMGLTRERNEAREENRE
iy - WRABHENFEREE  FH
AR E14% (ZFE = —4F : 15%)
EE o

Eit REANBREAEEENARE
P - IS RENREREFE
% Al 430,312,000 ( =& — — F ¢
59,377,000 7 ) #118,960,0007¢ ( — &
——4% :34,310,0007T) °

e)R=—ZTE-_—_F=HA=+—8' EANR

EEXOHE AR TERITERNY
H¥ERMmFMEA921,0000 (2T = —
£ :1,021,0007T) °

certain individual restaurants, a cash generating unit for
impairment assessment purpose, which under-performed
and estimated the recoverable amounts of the right-of-use
assets and other property, plant and equipment of these
restaurants. Based on these estimates, the carrying amount
of right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment was written down by $30,312,000 (2021:
$59,377,000) and $18,960,000 (2021: $34,310,000)
respectively during the year. The aggregate recoverable
amounts of thirty of these restaurants amounted to
$26,607,000 based on their value in use net of relevant
lease liabilities (2021: twenty-three of these restaurants
amounted to $25,578,000). Apart from the above, the
recoverable amounts of the remaining impaired right-of-
use assets and other property, plant and equipment were
minimal (2021: the recoverable amounts of the remaining
impaired right-of-use assets and other property, plant and
equipment were minimal). The estimates of recoverable
amount were based on the value in use of these right-of-
use assets and other property, plant and equipment,
determined using a pre-tax discount rate of 14% (2021:
15%).

As a result, impairment losses of right-of-use assets and
other property, plant and equipment of $30,312,000 (2021:
$59,377,000) and $18,960,000 (2021: $34,310,000) were
recognised during the year.

(e) At 31 March 2022, the net book value of properties

pledged as security for banking guarantees granted to
certain subsidiaries of the Group amounted to $921,000
(2021: $1,021,000).

RPEREBRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

125



BATS IR AL

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BrIER B » BRI ABETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

108 ETME - Hth'hE RS MEHH 10INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, OTHER PROPERTY,

REELH &) PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD LAND
(continued)

(f) REFBURKREHERLEIRENE - & (f) The Group leases out investment properties under
LHEEVF A —FE2+F - FIAM operating leases. The leases initially run for one to ten
EXNTBEXERE  AEBREDT years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. The
ARBRMCEHET BZERHRE Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
HERMFEBENT - cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

—FR Within one year 4,768 4,301
—FEREMTNRN After one year but within two years 4,253 4,639
MERE=FRA After two years but within three years - 4,253

9,021 13,193
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1MERESE 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
PAFTE A
AERE)  DMTERAR  DTERR
FEB AR ARRH) ABRH]
HELTH HESAMN #R - BEA
BERERER H 15 R
Ownership
interests in Other Plant,
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
A Cost:
RZE-_ZFMA—H At 1 April 2020 8,098 1,863,147 9,338 1,880,583
& 5 S Exchange adjustments - 4,949 35 4,984
e Additions - 65,189 3,360 68,549
HEEE Lease modifications = 113,040 1,046 114,086
HE Disposals - (38,453) (382) (38,835)
N_E-_—F=A=+—H At 31 March 2021 8,098 2,007,872 13,397 2,029,367
EFITENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZZZZFMA—H At 1 April 2020 2,615 441,020 3,337 446,972
& 5 A% Exchange adjustments - 1,258 14 1,272
REE Charge for the year 197 439,246 3,791 443,234
REEE (T 10d)) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 482 58,633 262 59,377
HERER Written back on disposal - (31,715) (382) (32,097)
R=ZZE-——F=A=+—H At31 March 2021 3,294 908,442 7,022 918,758
REFE Net book value:
RZZE-—F=A=+—H At31 March 2021 4,804 1,099,430 6,375 1,110,609

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1MERAERE &) 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
PAFTER AR
ABRR)  DAIRERA  UIRERA
FIEE A/ ABRHY ABRRY
HELH HIESRN #ES - iR
HAEER HAt ¥z B
Ownership
interests in Other Plant,
leasehold land properties machinery and
held for own leased for own equipment,
use, carried at  use, carried at carried at
depreciated depreciated depreciated
cost cost cost
T F T
$'000 $'000 $'000
B Cost:
RZE-_—FWA—H At 1 April 2021 8,098 2,007,872 13,397 2,029,367
bE i R Exchange adjustments - 4,198 21 4,219
= Additions - 188,319 80 188,399
HEEBE Lease modifications - 220,900 3,028 223,928
He Disposals - (78,564) (230) (78,794)
RZZEZZF=A=+—H  At31March 2022 8,098 2,342,725 16,296 2,367,119
EFITENRE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
RZZE_—FWNA—H At 1 April 2021 3,294 908,442 7,022 918,758
[& 5 A% Exchange adjustments - 1,839 15 1,854
REZE Charge for the year 183 404,525 3,722 408,430
HAERE (M 10(d) Impairment losses (note 10(d)) 339 29,743 230 30,312
HERED Written back on disposal - (70,749) (230) (70,979)
WZZ-_—F=A=+—H  At31March 2022 3,816 1,273,800 10,759 1,288,375
REFE Net book value:
RZZEZ—F=ZF=+—H  At31March 2022 4,282 1,068,925 5,537 1,078,744
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1MERAERE &) 11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
REENEEN B FERELAENEmEE The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by
DTEHIIAT - class of underlying asset is as follows:

LAITERAABESRSVE  Ownership interests in leasehold land held for
BRAMEE L iERE own use, carried at depreciated cost

s 4,282 4,804
LAHTERR A ABRRIFAVE  Other properties leased for own use, carried
BREMEMYE at depreciated cost (i) 1,068,925 1,099,430
PAYTER A ABRAH#ES « Plant, machinery and equipment, carried
HEAR RN R A at depreciated cost (i) 5,537 6,375
1,078,744 1,110,609

AT ERR A AR E Ownership interests in leasehold land and
BERAMEE L ESE buildings held for own use, carried at
MIRBE B HERERS - HF|  depreciated cost, with remaining lease term
HIAEHAE 10 E504F  between 10 and 50 years

2 34,964 37,960
AR BEARNEE Ownership interests in leasehold investment
EEN R RERE property, carried at fair value, with remaining
@ AR E BT lease term between 10 and 50 years
10FEZE50F 2 28,100 29,830
63,064 67,790
1,141,808 1,178,399

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 29
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NMERERE @)
BN AT EREROHEARNERRE
DHTET :

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

RIZNEEDENEREEE Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
TEER by class of underlying asset:
HEERMBEE T EEERED Ownership interests in leasehold land
held for own use 183 197
HEERAMEMYIZE Other properties leased for own use 404,525 439,246
HEES - MM TN R Plant, machinery and equipment 3,722 3,791
408,430 443,234
MITEKARARNFEEE AL Ownership interests in leasehold land and
FHE L FIZEY RSB RE buildings held for own use, carried at
Em o AFSEERE 1062 depreciated cost, with remaining lease
504 2 [H term between 10 and 50 years 2,193 2,227
410,623 445,461
HEaEFN S &R (H5E5a) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 32,404 36,824
S HHERENE R Expense relating to short-term leases 6,823 4,225
TMAHEBEENAEHE Variable lease payments not included
INE¢-: in the measurement of lease liabilities 5,507 3,430

REEFE RAREE EL 188,399,000 T (=
T - — 4 :68,549,0007T) c iz LT E
HREFHERZENTNERNEEMNK
B -

HERSREABNAESENEHRE ST
RFFA{E B0 RIS M EE16()F118 -

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were
$188,399,000 (2021: $68,549,000). This amount primarily
related to the capitalised lease payments payable under new
tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(c) and 18
respectively.
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MERERE 2

EE20)

P (i)

HAEE R EMmY

AEEERBEEHRESEREMYE
ERTEELREFENET - ZFHER
BVRBRA=ZR AFL HEREERE -

REE-_ZT-_—F=A=1+—RHIFE -
AEEHETZREBE  HREEERE
EEE AR M EE R HEFEEREMNR
BRI BEEN TGN - KBRS RIE
WEH10% E20% (ZE=Z—F : 10% =
20%) MR ERTASHWEERET - B4
NRIERERRREBLENTEEEE -

AEBESHIHAEME - KT ==
F=A=+—8 ' RETA#EKROHSER
REPE—FAR—FEREBERFATIE
7 & 1K 2 M KB S 5 52,274,0007T
(=== —4%:2,274,0007T) % 630,0007C
(ZZ——4 :2,904,0007C) °

HibEE

AEBEHERKSS  RERKBHEAE RS —
FERF - BETHERSEMA GRER
WK BT E R R AE -

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Note (i) Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other properties as its retail
stores and office through tenancy agreements. The leases typically run
for an initial period of three to five years with renewal options.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group leased a number of
restaurants which contain variable lease payment terms that are based
on revenue generated from the restaurants and minimum annual lease
payment terms that are fixed. The contingent rent payments are
determined based on 10% to 20% (2021: 10% to 20%) of the
revenue over the base rents. These payment terms are common in
restaurants in Hong Kong where the Group operates.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group. At 31
March 2022, the total future minimum sublease payments expected to
be received under non-cancellable subleases within one year and after
one year but within five years were $2,274,000 (2021: $2,274,000)
and $630,000 (2021: $2,904,000) respectively.

Note (ii) Other leases

The Group leases plant, machinery and equipment under leases
expiring from one to six years. Some leases include an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated.

RPGEEBABRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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1288 12 GOODWILL

KA (MWA—BR=A=+—H) Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001
BeEENEeELE THRERI Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing
goodwill
(Sl =Pl NS RS b T Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
DEEEMREELE T FBOT ("CGU") identified according to the location of operation and

business segment as follows:

ZEs — B At Restaurants — Mainland China 1,001 1,001

ReEHBEITMAIROHZERAMEREE The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on

STEEETE BEFEFEERTERRE value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
LB BEEREEEHNTFRERE projections based on financial budgets approved by
TR o management covering a five-year period.
SAEEABENEERR Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

ESVRS Gross margin 8% 12%
BERE Growth rate 5% 5%
= Discount rate 14% 15%

ERERBBERBMYEYMISERENTELR Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on

ETREEEMNRE o LA EITE R 28 past performance and their expectation for market
WEX . YR EESEHSTEEY A development. The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect
B specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.
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BHEHUEMEE 13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

FREBeREE Current financial assets
EEBEH RGN =E Debt securities at amortised cost
- JELEMEBRE — Unlisted but quoted - 16,745
RZEZ—4F=A=+T—HBHFRBEH The non-current debt securities as at 31 March 2021
FHENIEQHERE—REemBEERT represented medium term notes (a) issued by a financial
AETTEHE - HREFNE23% 8 - BRH institution in Luxembourg, denominated in United States
BAE-_ZT-—FtA+_-_HNPHEE: dollars, bore interest at a rate of 2.3% per annum with
MO)BAES —FRSREEEIT UARK maturity date on 12 July 2021; and (b) issued by a financial
FHE - BREMNZEAS%EE - BESAIA R institution in Hong Kong, denominated in Renminbi, bore
T-—F+—HA -+ BWHPHER - interest at a rate of 4.5% per annum with maturity date on 20
November 2021.
1458 14 INVENTORIES
Q) REHMBRRRIANEE S : (a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of

financial position comprise:

B &k Food and beverages 50,606 40,156
SHFEM - BEME R Consumables, packaging materials and
Hfth 378 other sundry items 6,672 5,852
57,278 46,008
L) EAAZIHNEEHE LI TWOT - (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense is as follows:

DEFENERmEE Carrying amount of inventories sold 737,055 657,131
75 SRR Write-down of inventories 679 412
737,734 657,543

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 33
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15 FE Mz A 20 00 L it R MG 3%

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

U BR ZX (B BRES 1B 24 ) Trade debtors, net of loss allowance 17,288 6,064
At FE U R Other receivables 51,301 22,111
ENHEEMAREEES Rental and utility deposits paid 51,483 50,770
FEUFRE X Lease receivables 2,239 2,239
SEUNE Prepayments 22,353 18,580
144,664 99,764

& T A& 56,103,0000( =& — — & : All debtors, deposits and prepayments of the Group, apart

6,112,00070) I AR E IR LI AEH
B EWERZ ~ 1R MFBNRFEET AT A —
FRWESRERAETH -

IR 0 AT

PR AR - 1) 7 FE U AR 50 L At 8 e R
TR YR (B HIBRE 1R EME) MARE
oI (ABRBEHEAE)WT ¢

from certain utility deposits totalling $6,103,000 (2021:
$6,112,000), are expected to be recovered or recognised as an
expense within one year.

Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance, is as follows:

—Z=F 1 to 30 days 15,404 4,693
=t+—ZN+H 31 to 90 days 1,882 1,254
Nt+—Z=—8BN\+H 91 to 180 days 2 56
—BN\t+—Z2=B,~+HAH 181 to 365 days - 61

17,288 6,064

AEERERETHNHERSTIEUR
ERBEFXNEE - ARBETGETERE
BHHMOBEENF=TE2EtTHEMNE
58

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on a cash and
e-payment basis. The Group also grants credit terms of 30 to
75 days to certain customers to which the Group provides
catering services.
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16 RITERRAESMAEEFRD 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Q@ BITERRRESMNALEEY (a) Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
G comprise:

RITFER Deposits with banks 305,097 375,641
SRR E Restricted cash 18,789 311
RITFERMR Cash at bank and on hand 233,216 239,680
GFERESMERMTHIR SN Cash and cash equivalents in the
HREEEY consolidated cash flow statement 557,102 615,632
HaiE =8 B R TER Bank deposits over three months - 6,511
557,102 622,143
AEBEBZRHNIBERIEBHESTHEA Restricted cash of the Group represents fund deposited
B R —REENE QA AIE TR into a designated bank account of an operating subsidiary
TERFE - B EZMBAREAR in the Mainland China. Such fund is available to the
BEKETHEEMEIRL GBS A subsidiary when needed to manage its short-term cash
R o BRULRESN - WZIRITERP commitments arising from its ordinary business activities.
FIZEIR & 25 3R Hl M o Other than the specified uses, the cash withdrawal from

such bank account is restricted.

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED 1 3 5
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16 BITESRESNMBALSEE/MZ) 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

136

(b) REBMEFHNEEERK :

TRARBAKEREZDNAER
BE BRASMIFRSES - KB
REZINABRERSREIRKE
ERERAEEGERERERNE
RREBELZHRERENAE -

R-ZB-ZEFNA—AR

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow
statement as cash flows from financing activities.

HEAE
Lease liabilities

(FizE18)

(Note 18)
Tt
$'000

At 1 April 2020 1,461,363

RMERSHRZEE ! Changes from financing cash flows:

BENHAERESHERIS Capital element of lease rentals paid (424,974)
ENHERESHF S D Interest element of lease rentals paid (36,824)
RER SR E A Total changes from financing cash flows (461,798)
BEHAE Exchange adjustments 3,961
H ity & 5 Other changes:

HEaEr s ER (HEsa) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 36,824
FREIHASEENHEE A LN Increase in lease liabilities from entering into

new leases during the year 69,028
HEEIE Lease modifications 109,411
HERE Lease disposals (247)
Efth & Ehsaga Total other changes 215,016
R-B——#=g=+—¢ At 31 March 2021 1,218,542
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16 BITERERESMRSEFR/M @)

(b) REBEFZBNWEEHIR - (&)

16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities: (continued)

Lease liabilities

(KzE18)

(Note 18)
Tt
$'000

R-ZB-_—-FWMA—AH At 1 April 2021 1,218,542
RMERESHRZEE ! Changes from financing cash flows:
ERNHEERESHE RIS Capital element of lease rentals paid (427,548)
ENHEEE SR EED Interest element of lease rentals paid (32,404)
AR SR EEEE Total changes from financing cash flows (459,952)
ERAZE Exchange adjustments 2,935
Hith & 5 Other changes:
HEBENEER (MiEsa) Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) 32,404
FRFIZHHEEENHER EE N Increase in lease liabilities from entering into

new leases during the year 183,135
HEBIE Lease modifications 217,656
HEHE Lease disposals (8,490)
HiEshass Total other changes 424,705
R-B-_—_F=H=+—H At 31 March 2022 1,186,230

ARSEEBEARAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16 BITESRESNMBALEE/M ) 16 BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

(c) HERS AL A% (c) Total cash outflows for leases
BERNGEAESRERNTEESS Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement
B for leases comprise the following:

KBS RA Within operating cash flows 12,330 7,655
MERSRA Within financing cash flows 459,952 461,798
472,282 469,453

17 FE 3 BR 3% F0 3 fth B 4 2% 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BRI ERT & Creditors and accrued expenses 320,347 326,634
AXBE Contract liabilities 6,520 10,587
H At FE A FRAN IR IE A Other payables and deferred income 17,357 22,353
BlHEZe Rental deposits received 204 204
344,428 359,778
T HTHEAENRIMELEWASG All of the trade and other payables, apart from certain other
8,961,0007T (—Z —Z 4 : 9,096,000 7T ) payables and deferred income totalling $8,961,000 (2020:
SN BT FEASBR RN E fib FE A SR TE HR S $9,096,000), are expected to be settled or recognised as
—FREBFHERZERA > HER—FA income or are repayable within one year.
g -
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17 B RRIMEMEAR 2 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
FEABRF N H b B B IR 3 = B Hist Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
HHREMERR  MERREHROERR D on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as of
T the end of the reporting period:

=== 1 to 30 days 104,122 106,975
=t+t—ZA+H 31 to 90 days 855 68
h+—Z—8/A\+AH 91 to 180 days 1,011 528
—BNAt+t—ZE=A~THH 181 to 365 days 19 62
—F Pk Over one year 170 196
106,177 107,829
HE AN EAHBESEEATENZE Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
NFAEREF AT contract liabilities recognised are as followings:
AREB T THHERPREEREEERS The Group occasionally receives consideration when the
U ER B o B ATERIER P RE AR customers purchase coupons from the restaurants at the time
HEMEEEL B TERSNEEREAEL of purchase. The respective revenue is expected to be
HARFHERR © recognised when the coupons are redeemed for future sales

by customers from restaurants or when the coupons expire.
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17EBFRRMEMESR 2) 17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
EHNEBNEE Movements in contract liabilities

R A— B/ &% Balance at 1 April 10,587 9,354
FRREBRTAFNEOBED Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
WA mEREE N8 ER D recognising revenue during the year that
was included in the contract liabilities at
the beginning of the year (8,100) (9,354)
BEHERFEFNANEERD Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
expiring of coupons (2,487) =
] 4 1A e R TR LR A IR A T 3 A Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
AREERD recognising revenue for advance received
during the year (6,416) (18,876)
AFREEITER S MmERK A Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
S4B EEM issuance of coupons during the year 12,936 29,463
R=A=+—Bm#sH% Balance at 31 March 6,520 10,587
FTEALABEHEEHAN —FRNLE SER All of the contract liabilities are expected to be settled or
RN o recognised as income within one year.
18sHEBAR 18 LEASE LIABILITIES
THRENTAREENHEAGZRBAER The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
HAMR - of the Group's lease liabilities:

—F R Within one year 410,072 433,320
—FEREREN After one year but within two years 309,798 324,359
MERERFA After two year but within five years 403,725 416,554
& After five years 62,635 44,309
776,158 785,222

1,186,230 1,218,542
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19REERFEF 19 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

REBERESCRHERESETEEA)
RRE - BBRBEEBUERGH)RES
EAMES @ fuaflt Eesrsl (58
HBerrdl]) - BT R —EREHNK
BRETE ABEYMXZTATE - RiE®
Beid EEMEESARRBREE R
ABHS% MR ESTEEEER: BF
AR AR LR A30,000T(=5=—
£ :30,0007T) ° M & EIE B A 4 51 B0 B
S o

AEEEFTBAIIMERERNEESRRE
EMSEERLER B EHMBEEROR
T HBUR ARG BIAVREE o

0 ERERHLIRNSERNI S

RZZBEZ—FNAARB KRR ZE—
—FNRAEBEEMCRITERETEIEE
w ([HE IR REET &) o AN BT AR ERT 2
DERRMETR S -_—FhL B ILBE
IR ©

RIFERE S ESRRENBEGET
MAREEKRENEFES  E=(RHEF
HOTESRBYFATES) ASMAER
FEFBRAEERAREZBRE - U7
BARRED HEBRAFER T =R
PHRSE ()NERERLBEHERRE
6 32 P 5 H SR B R AT LA B A U T 1B ¢ (i)
REZBRERLE BRI OSSR A ER
R TR RERAFA RO FIHRHER
(i mEE REFSETLNEROE
BEZORETRIN - B Y EIEHA
BRETEMAMARAENRIESR - 8
BEEETHAEARBIRARR L B
HYRER

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $30,000 (2021: $30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

On 6 September 2021, the current share option scheme which
was adopted on 7 September 2011 has been expired (the “Share
Option Scheme”). A new share option scheme was approved
by the shareholders and adopted on 9 September 2021.

Under the Share Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any employee, Director (including
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Director) or officer of any member of the Group or any related
trust or company to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (jii)
the nominal value of a share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.
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0RESRAMLUKRMEERNES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

(@) UTRERFER TEBRENERRK (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
Mrt - FIEBRESDEBEER during the year are as follows, whereby all options
TRDGEE : are settled by physical delivery of shares:

Hi R

Al 2 2 gE] E SE15 4 4 HR
Average

Number of contractual life

Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options

BRTESMHE -

Options granted to Directors:

-—T-EFMA=+H 320000 ARZT—AFMA—BE-T_= 7.0
= A=T—HBHERS A#ITE
—20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

-—=—RF+A-H 33,000 ARZE-—XF+A-BE-T-— 7.0
NA=+HEBBEAD A#ITE
— 2 October 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 October 2016 to 30 September 2022

-ZTZZEF+ARA 40,000 FIRZEZ—FNA—HEZZT_+F 6.74
=A=+—BHHEAS T#ITE
— 6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

-—E-_FFNA+A 1,600,000 FAIR-T-—FMA-—HE-_T_+F 6.64F
=EA=+—BHHEAS THITE
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027
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0REESRAMLUKRNEERINES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)

QUTEEZREEE THERENIER (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
MG - FIEBREIEREER during the year are as follows, whereby all options
R EE (&) are settled by physical delivery of shares: (continued)

fE A

= EREEE & E

Average

Number of contractual life

Date granted options  Vesting conditions of options

X7 IE B R

Options granted to employees:

-—ZT—hFWA=+H 1,303,500 AIR-ZFE—RFOA-—HE-ZT—— 7.0%

= A=+—HEEAD ARLITHE
— 20 April 2015 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 7.0 years

from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2022

-—E-N\F+=ZA+NH 30,000 AIR=EBE-HAF+A—HEZZT_-OF 6.84F
NA=THEHERS A#LITE
— 18 December 2018 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.8 years

from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2025

-—E-FF{ AKH 940,000 AR-ZZE-_—FNMA—BE_T_+F 6.7
=A=T—BHEAS B#ITE
-6 July 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.7 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

_—=-—T&,/\A+H 720,000 ARZTF-Z—FMA—BE-T-LHF 6.6
=ZA=T—BHHEAS BHITE
— 10 August 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.6 years

from 1 April 2021 to 31 March 2027

- ZF+—H=+H 300,000 AR-E-_—FF+-_A-HE_T_LF 6.9%F
T—A=TBE8BEAS BITE
— 30 December 2020 Exercisable in five tranches during the period 6.9 years

from 1 December 2021 to 30 November 2027
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0RESRAMLUKRMEERNES 20EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

(%) (continued)
(b) BRENEE FMNEFHTEE (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
W of share options are as follows:
—E-—F T —F
2022 PAOVA
N hntEFE
TEE  REREHE TEE  EREHE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
REFEARITEE Outstanding at the beginning
of the year $18.47 5,286,000 $23.66 3,428,000
RERTITEE Exercised during the year $17.08 (20,000) = =
RERNE T Granted during the year - - $17.37 3,660,000
RERER Lapsed during the year $19.19 (427,000) $20.60 (762,000)
REREH Cancelled during the year - - $30.14  (1,040,000)
REREARITE Outstanding at the end of
the year $18.41 4,839,000 $18.47 5,286,000
RERAITE Exercisable at the end of the year $20.18 1,790,000 $20.76 1,664,000
FREITEEBIRERITE B & #E The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
FHBRER/ITBT( =T = —F: for shares options exercised during the year was $17.08
E1) o (2021: $Nil).
R-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—HBKRTEE The options outstanding at 31 March 2022 had a weighted
iR NEFEHITEEA1841L (= average exercise price of $18.41 (2021: $18.47) and a
T —F:18477m)  MMEFEHIH weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.53 years
BAEMER B3B3FE(ZE - —F: (2021: 4.47 years).
4.477F) °
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0EREEMLIRMSERNRIS
(%)
() BREND R EBEMERR
ARTEBEREMESKREN QA E
CE2REBRTERENRAE
B2 MEERU=EXEEER
tEH AR - BEREMSOMEREE
EER A EAE - ZHABEER D
BERETERENER -

20 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of
the share options granted is measured based on a trinomial
lattice model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the trinomial lattice model.

RZBZBF RZZETFE R

TtARBET NA+EET +=-HA=+H
Y i A e R TR ERE
Options Options Options

granted at granted at

granted at
6 July 10 August 30 December
2020 2020 2020

BRENDABERMN Fair value of share options and

FrER assumptions
REtEHNAREE Fair value at measurement date $1.79 $1.65 $1.71
BB Share price $17.90 $17.08 $17.76
1718 Exercise price $17.90 $17.08 $17.76
TEHIK & Expected volatility 20.29% 20.58% 20.82%
HRREEARR (A =18 Bh[EEA  Option life (expressed as weighted

T A3 &9 o0 159 BRBR 51 7R ) average life used in the modelling

under trinomial lattice model) 6.7 “F years 6.6 4F years 6.9 4F years

TEEARR B ks X
EER X (RREABA
EHFBEHH)
Yield)

Expected dividend yield 4.08% 4.27% 4.5%
Risk-free interest rate (based on
Hong Kong Government Bond

0.39% 0.24% 0.49%

BEEERERBGHERT - A5HE
EAEMESRBERETENRAE
B - WRAEERERGE - RTBK
TR b NP 75 (E AT B2 T 35 5 B AR 4F o

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

RPGEEBABRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

145



146

B S ¥R AR MY

Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESHE - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 FEMBRARATHOMRER 21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) &R & B FEAR R 3R P /R RO A HA RS (a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of
HA financial position represents:

REEEBREHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year 7,307 79
BT EHAISH Provisional Profits Tax paid (17,706) (17,692)
(10,399) (17,613)
R*& : Representing:
AT U 51 A HRF 18 Current tax recoverable (10,440) (17,633)
eI A BRI 18 Current tax payable 41 20
(10,399) (17,613)
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21 iREMBRARATHOMRER (2)

(b)ERERELEFHEEENES :
BELGZE WA R RERAELER B
(BE)/ AEMERTEI AREE-T
T oFEM-_E-_—F=A=+—H81t

21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the years ended 31

FEZHWT :

March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

b apEl
KRE HEORE
MEE

B e R
AJ R A
R RRA =
Depreciation

allowances
Future

Revaluation in excess

of investment of related benefit of
tax losses

Tt
$'000

depreciation
S
$'000

properties
Tt
$'000

RETHBENELESE : Deferred tax arising from:
RZZE_ZFMA—H At 1 April 2020 4,897 9,139 (22) 14,014
fEirdiBmERTEIA Credited to the consolidated
(Mf3E6(a)) statement of profit or loss
(note 6(a)) (3,293) (11,980) (881) (16,154)
M-ZE-_—F=A=+—H At31 March 2021 1,604 (2,841) (903) (2,140)
R-—ZE-——%mA—R At 1 April 2021 1,604 (2,841) (903) (2,140)
A BmRP (FTA),/  (Credited)/charged to the
5|3z (FifEE6()) consolidated statement of
profit or loss (note 6(a)) (654) (2,359) 903 (2,110)
MRZZT-—F=A=+—H At31 March 2022 950 (5,200) - (4,250)

HELR B PN RERD Net deferred tax assets recognised
RIETRIBE EFE in the consolidated statement of
financial position (5,336) (3,935)
iR e MR R R Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
RERBEEETE in the consolidated statement of
financial position 1,086 1,795
(4,250) (2,140)
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21 SMBERARATHMRBIRGE  21INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

() RERNELHIEERE : (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
AEBE WA BRFTHEBEBEB The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect

135,086,000 ( — & — — % of the cumulative tax losses of $135,086,000 (2021:

104,548,0007T ) &3 T KB 2 &7 /9 7]
H0 6 ET A 2= 4,805,000 (Z B = —
4 : 4,597,0007T) FER B BAELERIE
BE AAAEEEEERE  BHE—
T —HF=-—A=+—HBH EHEET
KA RETER BT IS 8 [ B 15 n] A
BEBBEHRRERGF - BT
B T B 2 R A9 7 TE 548 97,935,000
T (=ZF = —4% :67,398,0007C) #51&
BIRTHREF A RE BB AT
BEIEIN  RIBEIRATRE - BERIEE

$104,548,000) and deductible temporary differences of
$4,805,000 (2021: $4,597,000) of certain subsidiaries as
management of the Group considers that it is not probable
as at 31 March 2022 that future taxable profits against
which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdictions. Other than tax losses of
subsidiaries in Mainland China of $97,935,000 (2021:
$67,398,000) which have an expiry period of five years
from the date of incurrence under existing PRC tax
legislation, these tax losses do not expire under current tax
legislation.

BTRERREY -

22 ¥ 22 PROVISIONS

RHRBE & 245 Provision for long service payments 21,398 22,073
TSGR EIS K A %ERE Provision for reinstatement costs for

rented premises 68,080 66,227

89,478 88,300

B BADRE A E ] EEE Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (27,781) (18,784)

61,697 69,516
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22 %l (#) 22 PROVISIONS (continued)
() REARTE & (a) Provision for long service payments

R A—H At 1 April 22,073 24,992
DEHE /(E(O) G Provision made/(reversed) 1,470 (1,668)
OB HER Provision utilised (2,145) (1,251)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 21,398 22,073

REFE(ERBIGN)  AKEARE
TEATEANKRERE R ELFH
BERBRAREIN—FFHA-E
NeBERFZFRENREFSEF
BfE - WEBMERBEANEBERKE
FREMKEASEHTMELD - K
KB &S A E S FHRIERES -

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who
have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the
employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlement accrued under the Group’s retirement
schemes that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group. The Group does not set aside any assets to fund
the above.

(b) HESZ TN ES R A EE (b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented
premises

REA—H At 1 April 66,227 68,103
BEEHIRAREINERS Additional provision made 4,418 1,833
)i et Provision utilised (2,565) (3,709)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 68,080 66,227

AR 45 B2 5 3 BT 37 A9 B 160 A A AR K
£ B 7R A R R & 1 JE R B AR B
VEERESH BERAHAKE
EIE - Rl ARBERERKELD
BERANRREMGEHRER -

Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with
landlords, the Group shall remove and reinstate the rental
premises at the Group’s cost upon expiry of the relevant
rental agreements. Provision is therefore made for the best
estimate of the expected reinstatement costs to be
incurred.
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23 B EMGE 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) AEBGEEEROTEAK D HE (a) The reconciliation between the opening and closing
VEB KR LMY E  HINRETSH balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated
R RREEHE - equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on page 75.

(b) Bz 2 (b) Dividends
() BREAFEEAARARERREN (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
BE Company attributable to the year

BEEIRMZH Interim dividend declared and paid of
HEANG B =A% 25.01L 25.0 cents (2021: 30.0 cents)
—ZT——%F :30.01l) per share 32,388 38,860
RS REREEZ DK Final dividend proposed after the end of
REARR S &A% 40.01L the reporting period of 40.0 cents
(== ——4F : 60.01) (2021: 60.0 cents) per share 51,821 77,720
84,209 116,580
RERARBZEEZRD RO KBRS The final dividend proposed after the end of the
mAERESHRBEREAE - reporting period has not been recognised as a liability

at the end of the reporting period.
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23FXxMEEMN =) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) RE (&) (b) Dividends (continued)
(i) BAL—BBEFE  IRAFERK (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
FEFREE B9 B AR X R HE 25 IR R AN Company attributable to the previous financial
135 year, approved and paid during the year

B E—BEHEE - W Final dividend in respect of the previous
REEAEREZR financial year, approved and paid
REARR B &A% 60.01L during the year, of 60.0 cents
ZEZ—4 :50.01L) (2021: 50.0 cents) per share 77,731 64,767

mEE—_T-_—&F=A=1+—H In respect of the final dividend for the year ended 31
IFFEREREMS R = — March 2021, there was a difference of $11,000 (final
FEUVBHRRPBEBRORARE dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020: $Nil)
HAFERERINEBE R between the final dividend disclosed in the 2021 annual
ZF11,000c (B2 -_TF= financial statements and the amount approved and paid
A=+—HLEFEMNREARS : T during the year which represented dividends
) eEERREBFPELFEL attributable to new shares issued upon the exercise of
RATTT{E BB AR AE T 27T O FT AR B 5 share options, before the closing date of the Register of
BEABIERE Members.
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23FXxMEEMN =) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) R (c) Share capital
2021
DR ] avE 4]
Number of Number of
shares shares
F A& T 3%
‘000 ‘000
EERAK : Authorised:
FREE TL R Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
ERTRAR: Issued and fully paid:
RIMAE—H At 1 April 129,533 129,533 129,533 129,533
BRI IR s T 21281 T Shares issued under share
KRRt (FEEG)) option scheme (note (i) 20 20 _ _
R=A=+—H At 31 March 129,553 129,553 129,533 129,533

fiiE

(i) REBRETERTRS

BEE_TE-_—_F=-A=1+—RHIFE"
AR N2 R] 20,000 JR E B AR M B AR IEE
HEATE 0 B A342,0007T © H 20,000
LB AR - 82 %8322,0007T A 5T A
B&49 % (8 B8R - IR M AR 1)) T FI &
TR - 34,000 LB HEAREEEA

Bin s Bk o

BE-_TE-_—=A=+—HItFE I

EEAEARER

Note:
(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 March 2022, options were exercised to
subscribe 20,000 ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration of
$342,000, of which $20,000 was credited to share capital and the
balance of $322,000 was credited to the share premium account.
$34,000 has been transferred from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(q)(ii).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no options were exercised.
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23 BEXMEEN &)
(d) EEHEEMNRAE
(i) BRDRE

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

BHBEERNERSIARAE
24 RN 150 R B 157 16 A B R =
1981 FERRLEVFTRE ©

AT

I 33 (% 5 SRR B B O b 2 T B
BTSSR P L B SN 2 5
3 B R 1) RS e
SRR -

(iii) AN B2 B

RE-NANANFN—REH A&
EIEE e NI IRN 7 AN 1)
NA] o ARBEANB AR AR
BEEFEBAARRDETRN
HEMNBBECIAXRBNHA
R -

RRABRBABHT B RZE(1981
FRRE)RE - REARE
981 FRRIE) » AR RIMBMAR
BRAI A A DK °

AT ETHIERT - AR ATEE
DA B B R SR B AR 8 K fE
P *

(@) AR BOE B A8 R AT 3
HWaE %

) REEMAZEREERAM IR
HEEEEDETRAREN
i B AREV AR o

The application of the share premium account is
governed by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of Mainland China operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in note 1(u).

(iii) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former
holding company of the Group became a subsidiary of
the Company. The excess of the consolidated net assets
of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company over the
nominal value of the shares issued by the Company has
been credited to the Company’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus
of the Company is available for distribution.

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be

less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.
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23 @F MG &) 23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d)REENEEMAZR (&) (d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iv) BEAf#E (iv)Capital reserve

122 BRI 5 1(a)(ii) PT B L SARR £ B 2
B B ST AT ER A B0 & 5T IR R FE R
B ERTARBMREBERITER
BERERETHHNAABED

2B o

(v) T FEEYE GRS
THMEEMEEFEERBENRE
BRANNEBEARENEFETE
EFEENAAEEZESD -

The capital reserve comprises the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(q)(ii).

(v) Land and buildings revaluation reserve

The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises
the fair value change arising on the revaluation of
property held for own use upon transfer to investment
property.

(e) EXEE (e) Capital management

AEBEREANIEANRRER
SENBAELE  KMEZTEER
K FHEBNERBHRILAGEKRAR
EERENT  BESBRREHRE
W WARHMH AR E SR

AEEEGRTEHRASMERELE AR
B UEARRSEEKFAIESR
B B R (B i B AR 42 B AR P dR 4R
MEZMREREZHREFE I
HEEERNEE M HBEEARRE -

R-CE-——FEM_E-_—F=H=
—H - ARaRETEMAKB A
EREENESBERER -

=
7] &P

|

RZEBE-_—_F=A=+—H ' &&
ENEHEFEAMREMBESEEY
& #£557,102,0000( = & = — & :
622,143,0007T) °

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholder, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had outstanding interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.

The Group had time deposits and cash and cash equivalents
as at 31 March 2022 amounting to $557,102,000 (2021:
$622,143,000).
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20 eRmEEERNMARKE 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
() ERtEREER AAEE (a) Financial risk management and fair value

AEBEBAELERBRARTARE
E RPpEcNEREAR AEEHE
LR AR BERELAR
P ER P O & B0 L B B 22 R SR AN 1B 5
SEEFIR T e

ZEFRRBBETAAEENS R EE
BERMEPIERE -

() EERR
HAEEMmME EERKRENEHA
REGUFEBANBEFMBEASE
EEEBENRR - AEENEE
2B = B2 3R B B UK AR 3R EL i B Lk
HEHEMERMEE - ARAEEN
REHEFAAEEREEERRE
ERERTT - Bt AE B mEER 2K 5 1R
TEFMREMESEEBEY 2 EE
BB AR o R IR A % £ WV © 1%
T AR B A K 2 T A B RS AR
M EBEBNG BEZT =
B=+—HBM-_Z-—F=/F=+
—H - ZFReNEREEBEY
TEK -

RBEHR - FEERREELRE
MEAEHBER - FERBRLERA
HAEBBRARTEREREEDN
FRE SR - BRMIFE26 &SI AR R
LA DM B ARMRITEREERR
HUMBERIN  NREBELARHEL
MEMA S AREARZERRR
HPELR

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices described below.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group's credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and
other financial assets. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are
banks for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk. Based on the historical experience of the collection
of the rental deposits from the landlords and the
financial position of the landlords, the directors assessed
that expected credit loss of these deposits as at 31
March 2022 and 31 March 2021 was insignificant.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group does not
have any significant concentration of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Except for
the financial guarantee given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries as disclosed in note 26, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk.
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29 emEBRERMARKEZ)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)

() TREEEER A AEBE(E)
() FERRE (&)
(1) & 45 B SRR L At 8 Wi 3R

BE e UL BR FROAN E b e W Em
: %ﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ%fﬁﬁ
m%m SRR T HEM B BRR
%M%ﬁﬁ\EXM%:ﬁ;
HeAEBEERTHEFLB
5 B H R B 42 8% K IR B
MBREN  YEBEEBRRP
MR EEMELERENE
BER - REAEERERER
Y 36 B8 5 A JE UK AR B R EL A
JEW A3 0EE75HREIH -
EEBBRAT  A&EBTEE
KEPREEER -

HREFEFHMRIESMEE.
AREWZHBEENLE
Bl 1t JE U B 3 0 L A Uk 3R Y
TEEEE BB EWETE AT
RiE-EHI ZEBHEIE
EEGIAERN EHE_T =
—FERZE_—FZA=1—
BIEFEA - RN&EEW KRG E
LT B RN EL ) i LS SR T R A f]
BB -

WIRE - NEBRKEREAFR
NEWZEERFPANEEX M
AEEFNG  AEEBBANE
B I EIMEINELN
FEe#ENEKEREEF
fERm BEAAESL - 5L
EEBREHEHE  HEHEC
T _FRZF—F=H=
T—HRLEFENSEETRE
TANERE BAMEAZR
WT% E it - 3 R e 4R
SRR E A W R SR AT R B 1B
ﬁﬁ

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Credit risk (continued)

(1) Trade and other receivables

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on customers of
catering service requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade and other receivables
are due within 30 to 75 days to certain customers to
which the Group provides catering services.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

ECL rates of the trade and other receivables are
assessed to be minimal, because of the customers’
good background and reputation and no past
default history. Thus, the loss allowance provision
for such balances was insignificant and no loss
allowance provision was recognised in respect of the
trade and other receivables for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

No credit evaluations are performed to retail
customers that are made in cash, Octopus or via
major credit cards. The Group’s trade receivables in
connection with sales settled through payment
platforms such as Octopus, Alipay or WeChat Pay
are with high credit rating and no past due history.
These assets are short-term in nature and the
probability of default is negligible on the basis of
high-credit rating issuers during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021, and accordingly, no loss
allowance was recognised in respect of the trade
and other receivables.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

4R EENAREE 2

() EREREER A AEBE(E)
() FERRE (&)

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

Q) HtheREE
BEHEFREBRAEARIY
EEFNRNARET  ERXX
SHFNEEFRRL  BE
BY TNEHMEMEEEET
5% o

AEEZRBEER T @A
HEEFENSRRRELRE
FHBRER  KFE - AK
BRREBEFNEERRK
BEEAEE BARREK
ER%EE -

(i) RBEEZER

AEEANEGNKEERARRAR
FNBRSEETHE BRASEK
M2 HI R B M8 & SUA R TR AT
ReBR(MREFEBBRELR
REELR BFESRKATNERS
M) - ARENBRETEHE
ERBESHF R UREERKERE
R HRTE (NF) - ARRAESF
AR HE  ARESARS
REEAEREREANGERES
AmREBNRERNORBER

oK e

TR TAKENSRABER R
THMROFBANIR - ZFT R
BERUIOARFTARSRE (B
FRART R R 3 (I EIE B) IR
= HIR B A R B R F B AT ) A
EAKEAXNORE AHRE -

(2) Other financial assets

Investments in debt securities are normally, issued
by corporate with sound credit standing. Given their
high credit standing, management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group measures loss allowances for debt
securities at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs and
assessed there was no significant loss allowance and
change in credit risk for the debt securities.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board of directors
when the borrowings exceed certain pre-determined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirement and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.
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20 eMEBRERMAAEE®) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
Q)ermEREERAAEERE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) REVEEME (&) (i) Liquidity risk (continued)

FTRIRITER MF LA E
FEHeR Ren2LE —FA EWERN BRAFA AFNUE
More than More than
Total one year two years
contractual but but More
Carrying undiscounted ~ Within  less than  less than than
amount cash flow one year two years five years five years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
[BYGiERen Rental deposits received 1,973 1,973 204 1,769 - -
JERTBEFAEST  Creditors and accrued
b= expenses 320,347 320,347 320,347 - - -
HEAE Lease liabilities 1,186,230 1,252,654 415,209 322,693 440,601 74,151

1,508,550 1,574,974 735,760 324,462 440,601 74,151

=
2021

FTRIRITER —FHUE MERE
> ReRELE —FN EMFA BRFA RAFNUE

More than More than

Total one year two years
contractual but but More
Carrying undiscounted ~ Within  less than  less than than
amount cash flow oneyear twoyears five years five years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bl eie Rental deposits received 1,972 1,972 204 13 1,755 =

FERTBEZXAEEt  Creditors and accrued

BH expenses 326,634 326,634 326,634 - = =
MEEE Lease liabilities 1,218,542 1,283,580 438,824 337,754 454,330 52,672

1,547,148 1,612,186 765,662 337,767 456,085 52,672
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L EREBEENAREE ) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

(continued)
() eRERREERQAABEE)
(iii) E¥ R

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iii) Currency risk

AEBEFHEENEERBRERRE
NAEBREXRGNHBNER
BN ERE RBEMNE M S E
BE ROFRLRREMREEFE
e Sl BERERRMEE T ERE
ETRARE - nRHIREHE) K
BER AREEEVERERER
EXBEING AR FRRER
R EAIEZAKE -

TRFMANE BN R E LR IARE
EENEEE AN EEED
EHRABEELABMELENER
RREE - AREEREREHRD
RERMEREHEH - ARARE
TEEAXREENIGREEERE
BIME & T 0 B 75 AR T EE A Y
=&

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
other financial assets and bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. The
Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an
acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rate at the
end of the reporting period. Differences resulting from
the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency are
excluded.

HNEE R B B
(AEHEFIR)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E=-= — 3= —E
2022 PAOVA
ETT AR =TT AREE
United United
NEIES NEIES
Dollars Renminbi Dollars Renminbi
Tz T Tz T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HithemEE Other financial assets - - 4,682 12,063
$RITE R RIES T Bank deposits and cash and
BEZEY cash equivalents 50,991 54,811 71,225 44,124
50,991 54,811 75,907 56,187
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20RBEEBRAARKRE#) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
Q)ermEREERAAEERE) (a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) E¥E RS (&) (iii) Currency risk (continued)

TRIIRALE B R B E M M AR The following table indicates the change in the Group's

B K A FE N 52 [ pod 2 S K R g profit after taxation and retained profits that would
HERNHREHREEL (REM arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has
BEMEREEESETE) mMER significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
Ml EEFE > ARNBTHESE had changed at that date, assuming all other risk
JHEME  REBFEHETL LB TN variables remained constant. In this respect, as Hong
[ERT g HIRTMERES - Kong dollar is pegged to United States dollar, the

Group does not expect any significant movements in
the United States dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange
rate.

—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
HMNESRESR  [RT(&m A & SMBIESR R A K
inb2 RE = A b2 RE A
(FER) i, Crd) (T&) &, Cmd)

Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)

(decrease) in profit after (decrease) in profit after

in foreign  taxation and in foreign  taxation and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

Tt T

$'000 $'000

AR Renminbi 5.0% 2,741 5.0% 2,809
(5.0%) (2,741) (5.0%) (2,809)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)

20REEBRAREEZ)

() EREREER A AEBE(E)
(iv) 2 REE

NREERER
TREVNAKENREHRIZERE
EEMFENERTAAAEE-
ZEEMTACR (BB HR
SERDFE 13 (AL EEFAE] T
REN=FEAABEER ~&HE
S2BUATEETEMFEANEA
ENAHERENEEN  #mE
ERAABEFEREMEREDN
B

- FERMBE: REAE—E
R AE(BIHREEXLRER
AAERHERED SN REH
BRE) KAEQAEE-

- FERME: FRAEZER
BAEBREE—ERNATEH
R AE) WHRES AN
RGABRAEALBE T
BN AERIERRTISEH
EBRBAME -

- ESEGMEE: RREATA
BREAERT B AR HE -

HE_Z-_—_Fh-_FT-—F=H
—t+—HLtFE YES@MIT AR
EAREBEEER 2HELRE([E
%o REBERNBREEAREERE
B2 R B R R R
BEEH -

A EES RS2 BT AN A
T 1EE

REBIRKASE HKRARNE
BIAMNEEDSE BERN-_T=
—FR-EBE-_—F=A=+—HwW
RARBEDBITAK -

(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(iv)Fair values

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
there were no transfers between financial instruments
in different levels. The Group's policy is to recognise
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2022 and 2021.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(BRIESHE - TRIGUEETR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20RBEEERAREE ) 24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
(continued)
(b)&FE T BBl (b) Categories of financial instruments

SREE Financial assets
HEMEemEE Other financial assets
— R KA ENEBES — Debt securities at amortised cost - 16,745
BEEKATENESREE Financial assets measured at amortised cost
R e REWRER — Debtors, deposits and lease receivables 191,717 156,689
- RITF R RIREH - Bank deposits and cash and
REZEEY cash equivalents 557,102 622,143
748,819 778,832
748,819 795,577
SEesE Financial liabilities
birg: £ )N N At amortised cost or cost
-BlkEeEE — Rental deposits received 1,973 1,972
- FERBRFRA BT E A — Creditors and accrued expenses 320,347 326,634
-HEAE — Lease liabilities 1,186,230 1,218,542
1,508,550 1,547,148
25 A iz 25 COMMITMENTS
R-ZEBE-——F=A=+—HBREMHX X Capital commitments for acquisition of other property, plant
EHBHRRANIREREGENAEE MY and equipment outstanding at 31 March 2022 not provided
X EBBTRENERAERNT for in the financial statements were as follows:

2ET4 Contracted for 11,443 3,752
EREERETL Authorised but not contracted for 15,573 4,189
27,016 7,941
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(FRIESEERR - TR ABETIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

26FHEE

E’\_v__i A=+—8 ARQEER
ET2ENBRRERRITHAFEEMR
RITIEHIELR

RBER BEETRALLREREEL
BREZHEMBIRHAR - RREHPR - A
AEIRBEZERBEBENSANESAME
B B8 A B 2 4R BX A 8 I 1= B 887,954,000
JTL(=ZT = —%:89,153,0007C) * EH %
ERASEBERREE -

AR A R EREEZE WA
RAREARBEELAEE ' MA
BERPER -

27EXFAMAERS

FRAMBEHRREMBOPARBENR S M ME
BRI - REEETT TIERBEB IR S

() EMME7AIHE  BAREEAEN
MEeRENARREFTHIE - B2
REBEFAIB TRA | (2BKEE
5(b))

bL)EAFERN AR —XKB QAR
FEBEBRERAR(HFEDBEAA—IE
V¥ SERERBGLE  BEEAL
ERERGHREERESR - I &
FAHBEEANENES - FRELD
@Eﬁﬁﬁéﬁ&?ﬁ%u&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
2Bl 2,146,000 T( =T = —F :
2,425,00075) 341,000t (ZF=—
£ : 259,0007T) °

RZEBEZZF=ZA=Z+—H ' XK
SRS ERFHAEEEUREE
B & A10,675000C( =& — —4F:

12,939,0007T ) F111,145,0007¢ ( = &
——% :13,187,0007T) °

26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2022, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of banking facilities extended to certain
wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantees is the amount of the facilities drawn
down by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees, being $87,954,000 (2021: $89,153,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair value cannot be
reliably measured and there is no transaction price.

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

(a) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid to
the Company’s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

(b)During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from New Champion International Limited (“New
Champion”). New Champion is a company beneficially
owned by Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, Mr Lo Fai Shing Francis
and his family members. In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi
Yeung is a director of New Champion. Depreciation of the
right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease liabilities
incurred during the year amounted to $2,146,000 (2021:
$2,425,000) and $341,000 (2021: $259,000) respectively.

At 31 March 2022, the Group recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of $10,675,000 (2021:
$12,939,000) and $11,145,000 (2021: $13,187,000)
respectively.

APEEBEERALE FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27EXKRBMABEXS (&) 27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(O EAFERN ARAA—KWEBRQRM (c) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a

EvERRRATELD)BA—EY
% o 3/ /i Pengto International Limited
(ZARBRERBLERERAE) B
HE- I BRBEERELMNE
E - FAEENTREEENENUR
HEBENEERH &1,875000
o( =& = — 4 :2,629,0007T ) M
332,0007T (=& = —4 : 292,0007%) °

R-_E-_—_F=HA=+—8 A58
AREREAEEEAREESE
9,139,000 T (=== —% : 11,135,000
JC ) M 10,842,00070( = T = — F ¢
12,909,0007T) °

property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Hibony is a
company beneficially owned by Pengto International
Limited (a company beneficially owned by Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung). In addition, Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a
director of Hibony. Depreciation of the right-of-use assets
and interest expense on lease liabilities incurred during the
year amounted to $1,875,000 (2021: $2,629,000) and
$332,000 (2021: $292,000) respectively.

At 31 March 2022, the Group recognised right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities of $9,139,000 (2021:
$11,135,000) and $10,842,000 (2021: $12,909,000)
respectively.

(d)EERFER ZBEBEMNCLETRADKE (d) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
At connected transactions

BREBE(ETRAFLAAETNES - H
£t (o) K (o) TR RA RS 5 R 5 B Ak BB XX
7o AEBEERBCETHR) E 14A
BERE NEFERENHERS ]
—HiR I -

The related party transaction in respect of (b) and (c) above
constitute connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section
“Connected transactions” of the Report of the Directors.
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28 N TFIBEMBEHE 28 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(a) 2 =) B FE AR R 3R (a) Company-level statement of financial position

FRBEE Non-current assets
NI NGIP - Fe Interests in subsidiaries (a) 581,088 457,777
RBEE Current assets
JFEE A2 B 30 R EL th 78 LK R Trade and other receivables 88,071 120,477
R MRESEED Cash and cash equivalents 1,001 837
89,072 121,314
REEE Current liability
JFE A< BIR 3R EL th 8 1R Trade and other payables 30,881 30,965
RBEEFRE Net current assets 58,191 90,349
EEFE NET ASSETS 639,279 548,126
BERMFEE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28(b)
[N Share capital 129,553 129,533
fEE Reserves 509,726 418,593
EmBE TOTAL EQUITY 639,279 548,126
%@ —“EXA=1TH&KAE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
N 7 A 3% Hj Directors on 30 June 2022.
ERB EEE
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Lo Fai Shing Francis
HITEE TTIEABEL
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer
Mk (a) : BB A B MRS HE IR A5 BR B9 JE Note (a): The interests in subsidiaries represent the unlisted shares stated
TR - EEHB A RIMFEHR at cost. Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
F£169 K% 1708 o 2N £ [ I £ 1 {a] fY 169 and 170. The Group does not have any subsidiary which has
BARHEAEA T RER - a material non-controlling interest.
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28 NFIEBEMBERH &)

(b) A EIEEED S B R
TREHIAR R E R A E D E
WE M EERE B B

(continued)

of the reporting period are set out below:

EEN
Share
capital

T
$'000

M& 15 (8
Share
premium
T
$000

BB
Contributed
surplus
T

$'000

BN
Capital
reserve

T
$'000

RE T
Retained
profits
T
$000

28 COMPANY-LEVEL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(b) Company-level statement of changes in equity
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and the end

R-E=-2F At 1 April 2020
mA—H 129,533 54,832 28,182 6,687 431,237 650,471
FEEBHERLS  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (64,767) (64,767)
AEEZBERNME  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (38,860) (38,860)
RE A Profit for the year - = = = 276 276
R H B AR Lapse and cancellation of
share options - - - (1,297) - (1,297)
IR EE AR Equity-settled share-based
BERHRS transactions 23(0)(i) = - - 2,303 - 2,303
R-B=—-% At 31 March 2021
=A=t+—H 129,533 54,832 28,182 7,693 327,886 548,126
R-B-—& At 1 April 2021
mA—H 129,533 54,832 28,182 7,693 327,886 548,126
FFEEEHERRE  Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 23(b)(ii) - - - - (77,731)  (77,731)
REEZEERMALE  Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 23(b)(i) - - - - (32,388) (32,388)
RER A Profit for the year - - - - 200,099 200,099
R R 2 Shares issued under share
BT option scheme 23(0)(i) 20 356 - (34) - 342
®11EH Issue expenses - (5) - - - (5)
R Lapse of share options - - - (800) - (800)
DRSS E R AR  Equity-settled share-based
BERNRS transactions 23(c)(i) - - - 1,636 - 1,636
R-BE-—F At 31 March 2022
=B=t+—H 129,553 55,183 28,182 8,495 417,866 639,279
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29l ER
BESAMBRIEMBIEHANFER
S AT R HMEMEBENEANTIR -

EENHERRRERDRRARE - F
FEICEANGEPEOE

29 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the following significant events took
place subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

After the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed a
final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b).
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J0EH/HERKREBEE"_S__F= 30POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

R=+—BHIEFEERAERT - ¥
EAMRETRFERORE

HEAPBHHRETER  BESHMAE
BEEAZEAEHE T -_—_F=A=+—
AIEFERARER  TNEEEARTBRE
HARESET R—EFHER  (BBUBRE
LERNENTH — [REBREA] - S LL2ER|E

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2022 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These

tBIETF AL AREBABHIER developments include the following which may be relevant to

the Group.

FELAT BBk 218
s R 2 5T HRRE A2
Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BERMBRERER)E IRIERT [ HHL2MELR 5/ 4t ]

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the conceptual framework

—E__F—H—H
1 January 2022

(BREEADERIERT WX » BESRRIE - (FRUEMZH ZFT{F500R )

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use

—T--%—HA—H
1 January 2022

(BREFERADEITRERT [EHREA - BAIKAK ]

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

- —#—HF—H
1 January 2022

—E__F—H—H
1 January 2022

(BEVBRELENFESCE (- N\EZ_Z_ZFFEAH)
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 cycle

(BREEADEVSRIER] B AEIE R R (EaE]7 ]

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

—E=F—H—H
1 January 2023

(BRETEANE 1 FIMCEAH B REER) EEBRAE 2B [ St BRKE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of accounting policies

e
1 January 2023

(BREFHER)ESRIER] [ 2ot A #EE

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of accounting estimates

—ZE_=%—H—H
1 January 2023

CEBGHNEADFE2RIEET | BEXZE LM EEFA EEF R IEHELATFH ]
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

—E=F—H—H
1 January 2023

AL B IR EELERTH AT AR
VEE - ZBRAL  AKERERAE
LT TAA SR N BRRELE

B2 488
T

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.
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Principal Subsidiaries

Al B#1T/iM AR EFH R 1D
UNSIEE R R BAFE Bk
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
establishment issued/registered SETEE
Name of company and operation capital by the Company Principal activity
Hf iz
Direct Indirect
BEERARAR N 2fR Az fn - 100% MERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RIRE (R ERER A A 0 10,000 izt - 100% REER
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment holding
Development Limited
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited” ERRARER/ 579,437 BEHR 100% - REER
BE E{E0.01 E TR
Fairwood B.V.I. Limited” The British Virgin Islands/ 579,437 shares of Investment holding
Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Fairwood Consolidated REEARHS/ 1REE 100% = BEER
Investments Limited" B (E:3)
Fairwood Consolidated The British Virgin Islands/ 1 share Investment holding
Investments Limited” Hong Kong of US$1
RRERE (ER)BRAR 5 2FR Az R - 100% HEREMR
Fairwood Fast Food Hong Kong 2 shares Restaurant licences
(Management) Limited holding
AREREBRAF BE 100 WK 579,437 - 100% maEHEREE
B ZRRE R (D
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and Operation of a chain of
579,437 non-voting fast food restaurants
deferred shares
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited" REEARHS/ 1REE - 100% HABR
e (E:3)
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited”  The British Virgin Islands/ 1 share Trademark holding
Hong Kong of US$1
FEERBRAT 5 2FR Az D - 100% MERE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
BMAREEREBEBRAR" IR AE# 16,000,000 - 100% mEEEREE
Guangzhou Fairwood Catering Mainland China RMB16,000,000 Operation of a chain of
Management Limited” fast food restaurants
WEERBRAT 5 2FR Az fn - 100% MERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

RPGEEBABRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Principal Subsidiaries

e,/ B#1T/iM AR EIFTH R
NTIEL R PR B BAHIE Bt
Place of incorporation/ Particulars of Percentage of
establishment issued/registered shares held
Name of company and operation capital by the Company Principal activity
B il
Direct Indirect

ARBERARAF B 288k - 100% MERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
KEBERARAF B 288k - 100% NERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERERBRAF BB 2[kB&k - 100% NERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
FEERERAA N 2Rz D - 100% MERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
RYIRRERERRAR" IR 22,700,00037T - 100% meEERER
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Mainland China US$22,700,000 Operation of a chain of

Limited” fast food restaurants
BAERARAF B 288k - 100% MERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ARERBERAF BB 288k - 100% NERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERBERAA AR 2FRAR D - 100% MERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
REERBERAA N 2Rz D - 100% MERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
GEEREBROA N 2R D - 100% MERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment
ERBEREBAF BE 28k tp - 100% MERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property investment

* WIHAEGHEAMEBAETNARF - *  Companies not audited by KPMG.

@ RZE-_—_FE=A=+—H8 " WIFHEF
BRI BT R MM B A R iRk
Frih IR AT FEERTEALLSE - HBA
5%(-ZT = —F :4%) 8% (T - —
F :5%)

(@) At 31 March 2022, the financial statements of the subsidiaries
not audited by KPMG reflect total revenue and total net assets
constituting approximately 5% (2021: 4%) and 8% (2021: 5%)
respectively of the related consolidated totals.

b) SHBARIREEFREEHITEEERN - (b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.

170



AEELFHBHRE

Five-Year Group Financial Su

(LAB#FITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E Results:
WA Revenue 2,881,942 2,646,469 3,030,198 2,970,524 2,840,571
A g A Profit from operations 80,208 175,223 110,075 215,204 255,033
B AR Finance costs (32,404) (36,824) (37,995) (32) (68)
BRt A Al Profit before taxation 47,804 138,399 72,080 215,172 254,965
FrigHi Income tax (5,164) 15,218 (11,213) (35,225) (38,888)
PAUNGIL: 2 Profit attributable to equity

FE(R 5 F shareholders of the Company 42,640 153,617 60,867 179,947 216,077
EEMNEE Assets and liabilities:
HEWE HEt%E - Investment properties, other

BEFREREE property, plant and equipment

Tt and leasehold land 413,297 454,696 513,111 518,633 546,060
EREEE Right-of-use assets 1,078,744 1,110,609 1,433,611 = =
JEWFR S Lease receivables 609 2,768 = - -
GEES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BffEekRe Rental deposits paid 68,797 72,737 76,732 68,517 71,602
HibemEE Other financial assets - = 15,821 19,825 7,785
EIERTAEE Deferred tax assets 5,336 3,935 22 44 107
MEEE Current assets 769,484 802,293 668,620 667,788 665,157
BEEHAR Total assets 2,337,268 2,448,039 2,708,918 1,275,808 1,291,712
mEERE Current liabilities (782,322)  (811,902)  (915,652)  (419,527)  (454,875)
FERBEE Non-current liabilities (840,710)  (858,301) (1,072,460) (78,603) (73,731)
EEFE Net assets 714,236 777,836 720,806 777,678 763,106

Mz AR E T -NFEA —BREACEER KR

Note:

SREADE 165 —[HE ] AEBESHAEA
BRTEAEE T BR o RIEZERR B (&
A BEEERNE B R BSREEEATE
BRBEEZE_T-NFMOA-ANERBEEME
BRE HREFEERBBETVHEERRE &
KEEREBARTERBEERERENEHRTE
ENFSER  UHEMEEENRNE Mk
RRU AT BOREE S RN AERAERIEEE
ENHESEM - —T-NFNA A BFE
IRE FEANBERIE

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, Leases, with effect from 1 April
2019, the Group has changed its accounting policies in respect of the lessee
accounting model. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the
standard, the changes in accounting policies were adopted by way of opening
balance adjustments to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as at
1 April 2019. After initial recognition of these assets and liabilities, the Group
as a lessee is required to recognise interest expense accrued on the
outstanding balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-
use asset, instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Prior to 1 April 2019, figures were stated in accordance with the policies
applicable in those years.

RPGEEBABRAT FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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AEEMBNREYE
Investment Properties Held by the Group

RZZE=_=—F=A=+—H
As at 31 March 2022

I B IR %

Location Existing use

A 723 8
YT

7 [

B 5

G S e

551035 = 1040 5% 4

Shop Unit Nos. 1035-1040 on Level 2 Shops
Lowu Commercial Plaza

Guangchang South Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen

PRC

HEH
Term of lease

b

Medium-term
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